

Porta **≦** Switch[™]



Handbook:

Broadband Internet, Wifi and IPTV Services Maintenance Release 21

www.portaone.com

Copyright Notice & Disclaimers

Copyright © 2000-2010 PortaOne, Inc. All rights reserved

PortaSwitch Handbook: Broadband Internet, WiFi and IPTV Services, September 2010 Maintenance Release 21 V1.21.4

Please address your comments and suggestions to: Sales Department, PortaOne, Inc. Suite #408, 2963 Glen Drive, Coquitlam, BC, V3B 2P7 Canada.

Changes may be made periodically to the information in this publication. Such changes will be incorporated in new editions of the guide. The software described in this document is furnished under a license agreement, and may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms thereof. It is against the law to copy the software on any other medium, except as specifically provided in the license agreement. The licensee may make one copy of the software for backup purposes. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopied, recorded or otherwise, without the prior written permission of PortaOne Inc.

The software license and limited warranty for the accompanying products are set forth in the information packet supplied with the product, and are incorporated herein by this reference. If you cannot locate the software license, contact your PortaOne representative for a copy.

All product names mentioned in this manual are for identification purposes only, and are either trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.

Table of Contents

	Preface	
1.	Prepaid WiFi Services	5
	Typical Prepaid WiFi Service Scenario	6
	Setting Up Your Network Components	7
	Checklist	
	Initial Configuration of PortaSwitch	
	Create Destination	
	Create Nodes	
	Create a Tariff	
	Croate a Product	
	Create Vendors	
	Define Connections	
	Create a Customer	
	Generate Accounts	
	Verify Wireless Internet Event History for Account	
2.	IPTV Services	
	IPTV Service Scenario	
	Checklist	
	Set up the Kasenna LivingRoom [™] Server	
	Configure PortaBilling	
	Create Subscriptions	
	Create Products	
	Create Customer and Account	
	Check Results on LivingRoom Server	
3.	Broadband Internet Access Services	
	Examples of Broadband Packages	
	Checklist	
	Initial Configuration of PortaSwitch	
	Create Destination	
	Create Services	
	Create Nodes	
	Create a Tariff	
	Enter Rates	
	Create Subscriptions	
	Define a Destination Group Set	
	Assign Profix to Destination Group	
	Create a Volume Discount Plan	
	Define Discounts within Volume Discount Plan	
	Create a Product	
	Create a Vendor	
	Define a Connection	
	Create a Customer	



Create Accounts	70
Check Current Volume Discount Statistics for Account	. 72
Verify Broadband Event History for Account	.74

Preface

This document provides PortaBilling100 users with step-by-step instructions and examples for setting up various prepaid and postpaid services on a VoIP network.

Where to Get the Latest Version of this Guide

The hard copy of this guide is updated at major releases only, and does not always contain the latest material on enhancements occurring between minor releases. The online copy of this guide is always up to date, and integrates the latest changes to the product. You can access the latest copy of this guide at: www.portaone.com/support/documentation/

Conventions

This publication uses the following conventions:

- Commands and keywords are given in **boldface**
- Terminal sessions, console screens, or system file names are displayed in fixed width font

The **exclamation mark** draws your attention to important information or actions.

NOTE: Notes contain helpful suggestions about or references to materials not contained in this manual.



60

Timesaver means that you can save time by performing the action described in the paragraph.

Tips provide information that might help you solve a problem.



1. Prepaid WiFi Services

Prepaid WiFi services enable Internet telephony service providers (ITSP) to offer wireless access services that customers can pay for in advance.

The market for prepaid services includes tourists, immigrant communities, mobile populations such as military personnel, and people with limited credit histories. These users can all gain immediate access to WiFi services at key locations such as hotels, cafes by using prepaid WiFi cards ("access codes") purchased at supermarkets and other types of retail outlets. Prepaid WiFi access is a single "purchase" transaction – so at the moment of the authorization all available funds are withdrawn from the account and converted into the WiFi access time.

Typical Prepaid WiFi Service Scenario

In an ITSP internal network infrastructure, prepaid services are implemented through a debit card application and work in conjunction with the following:

- Mikrotik RouterBoard 532 with RouterOS 2.9 installed
- PortaBilling100

This combination of services enables a carrier to authorize prepaid WiFi access and debit individual user accounts in real time.

Customer interaction:

- Customer selects the WiFi network
- Customer clicks "Connect"
- Customer opens her web browser
- Customer opens WiFi gateway authorization page
- Customer enters the login and password
- Customer starts her work

Setting Up Your Network Components

Mikrotik Configuration Guidelines

1. Assign a proper IP address to Mikrotik.

If it is already assigned go to step 2. If not, set IP address manually or enable DHCP client and assign it to Ethernet interface with the help of winbox.exe utility.

Click the "..." button, and select your router; only one should appear.

🖿 WinBox L	.oader v2.2.10			
<u>C</u> onnect To:	00:0C:42:09:5E:6B		Connect	
Login:	MAC Address	IP Address	Identity	Version
Login	00:0C:42:09:5E:6B	192.168.0.214	MikroTik	2.9.44
Password:				
<u>N</u> ote:				
Address A				
Address -				

Make sure the login is **admin** and there is no password. Click **Connect**.

💷 WinBox L	.oader v2.2.10		×				
<u>C</u> onnect To:	00:0C:42:09:5E:6B	Connect					
<u>L</u> ogin:	admin		-				
<u>P</u> assword:							
	<u>S</u> ave						
	⊂ . Secure <u>M</u> ode						
	Load Previous Session						
<u>N</u> ote:	MikroTik						
Address 🛆	User Note						

Open the **IP** tab, choose **DHCP Client** and then at the window click the "+" button. Assign a new DHCP Client port using the **Interface** dropdown box and click **OK**.

	admin@00:0C:42	:09:5E:6B (MikroTik	:) - WinBox v2.9.44	- 🗆 🛛
10	0			a
C	Interfaces Wireless PPP Bidge IP Routing	Addresses Roules		
	Queues Drivers System Files Los	Pool ARP VRRP Firewall Socks		
	Log SNMP Users Radius	UPNP Traffic Flow Accounting Services		
RouterOS WinBox	New Terminal Telnet Password Certificate Make Supout ni Manual Exit	Packing Neighbors DNS DHCP Client DHCP Client DHCP Relay Hotspot IPtec		
		Ргоку		



DHCP Client						×
+ - 🗸 🗙						
Interface /	Use P	Add D	Status	IP Address	Expires After	
🛕 ether1	yes	yes	bound	192.168.0.21	00:07:56	
s						

2. Connect to Mikrotik.

ssh admin@192.186.0.21

NOTE: Replace 192.168.0.21 with Mikrotik IP address:

3. Assign IP address to wlan1 interface.

```
[admin@Mikrotik] > /ip address add interface=wlan1 address=192.168.12.1
netmask=255.255.255.0 disabled=no
[adimn@Mikrotik] > / address print
Flags: X - disabled, I - invalid, D - dynamic
    ADDRESS
                       NETWORK
                                       BROADCAST
                                                       INTERFACE
#
0 D 192.168.0.214/24 192.168.0.0
                                       192.168.0.255
                                                     ether1
    192.168.12.1/24
                       192.168.12.0
                                       192.168.12.255 wlan1
1
[admin@MikroTik] >
```

NOTE: Network "192.168.12.0/24" is used as a sample.

4. Enable wlan1 interface and set wireless to "access point-bridge" mode.

[admin@Mikrotik] > /interface enable wlan1

[admin@Mikrotik]	> /interface	print		
Flags: X - disab	led, D - dyna	mic, R - running	9	
# NAME	TYPE	RX-RATE	TX_RATE	MTU
0 R ether1	ether	0	0	1500
1 R ether2	ether	0	0	1500
2 R ether3	ether	0	0	1500
3 R wlan1	wlan	0	0	1500
[admin@Mikrotik]	>			

[admin@Mikrotik] > /interface wireless print
Flags: X - disabled, R - running

0 name="wlan1" mtu=1500 mac-address=00:0C:42:05:7A:B6 arp=enabled

name="wilarl" mtu=1500 mac-address=00:00:00:42:05:/A:B6 arp=enabled disable-running-check=no interface-type=Atheros AR5413 radio-name="000C42057AB6" mode=station ssid="MikroTik" area="" frequency=mode=manual-txpower country=no_country_set antenna-gain=0 frequency=5180 band=5ghz scan-list=default rate-set=default supported-rates-b=1Mbps,2Mbps,5.5Mbps,11Mbps supported-ratesa/g=6Mbps,9Mbps,12Mbps,18Mbps,24Mbps,36Mbps,48Mbps,54Mbps basicrates--b=1Mbps basic-rates-a/g=6Mbps max-station-count=2007 acktimeout=dynamic tx-power-mode=default noise-floor-threshold=default periodic-calibration=default periodic-calibration-interval=60 bursttime=disabled dfs-mode=none antenna-mode=ant-a wds-mode=disabled wds-default-bridge=none wds-default-cost=100 wds-cost-range=50-150 wds-ignore-ssid=no update-stats-interval=disabled defaultauthentication=ye default-forwarding=yes default-ap-tx-limit=0

Porta 🗹 Switch

```
default-client-tx-limit=0 proprietary-extensions=post-2.9.25 hide-
ssid=no security-profile=default disconnect-timeout=3s on-fail-
retry-time=100ms preamble-mode=both compression=no allow-
sharedkey=no
[admin@Mikrotik] > /interface wireless set 0 mode="ap-bridge"
[admin@Mikrotik] > /interface wireless print
Flags: X - disabled, R - running
0 name="wlan1"...
mode=ap-bridge ...
...
[admin@Mikrotik] >
```

5. Configure DHCP-SERVER for WiFi.

5.1. Add IP pool which will be used for WiFi;

```
[admin@Mikrotik] >/ip pool add name=wifi-pool ranges=192.168.12.2-
192.168.12.255
[admin@Mikrotik] >/ip pool print
# NAME RANGE
0 wifi-pool 192.168.12.2-192.168.12.255
[admin@Mikrotik] >
```

5.2. Add dhcp network;

```
[admin@Mikrotik] > /ip dhcp-server network add address=192.168.12.0/24
dns-server=192.168.0.1,213.186.192.2 gateway=192.168.12.1 comment="wifi
network
[admin@Mikrotik] > /ip dhcp-server network print
    ADDRESS
                  GATEWAY
                                  DNS-SERVER
                                                WINS-SERVER
                                                               DOMAIN
#
0
    ;;; wifi network
192.168.12.0/24
                192.168.12.1
                                  192.168.0.1
                                  213.186.192.2
[admin@Mikrotik] >
```

NOTE: Network «192.168.12.0/24» used for sample, replace it with real network address and set correct dns-server address(es).

5.3. Add dhcp server;

```
[admin@Mikrotik] > /ip dhcp-server add interface=wlan1 address-
pool=wifi-pool lease-time=3d00:00:00 disabled=no
[admin@Mikrotik] >/ip dhcp-server print
```

Flags: X - disabled, I - invalid
NAME INTERFACE RELAY ADDRESS-POOL LEASE-TIM ADD-ARP
0 dhcp1 wlan1 wifi-pool 3d
[admin@Mikrotik] >

6. Configure RADIUS client.

[admin@Mikrotik] > /radius add address=111.11.11.11 secret="mikrotik"
service="hotspot"
[admin@Mikrotik] > /radius print
Flags: X - disabled
SERVICE CALLED-ID DOMAIN ADDRESS SECRET
0 hotspot 111.11.11 mikrotik
[admin@Mikrotik] >

NOTE: 111.11.11.11 - IP of Master (Radius) Server, secret - RADIUS Key

7. Configure HOTSPOT server.

7.1. Add profile for RADIUS AAA;

[admin@Mikrotik] > /ip hotspot profile add name="wi-fi AAA" useradius=yes [admin@Mikrotik] > /ip hotspot profile print Flags: * - default 0 * name="default" hotspot-address=0.0.0.0 dns-name="" htmldirectory=hotspot rate-limit=" http-proxy=0.0.0.0:0 smtpserver=0.0.0.0 login-by=cookie,http-chap http-cookie-lifetime=3d split-user--domain=no use-radius=no 1 * name="wi-fi AAA" hotspot-address=0.0.0.0 dns-name="" htmldirectory=hotspot rate-limit="" http-proxy=0.0.0.0:0 smtpserver=0.0.0.0 login-by=cookie,http-chap http-cookie-lifetime=3d split-userserver=0.0.0.0

use-radius=yes radius-accounting=yes radius-interim-update=received
nas-port-type=wireless-802.11 radius-default-domain="" radius-locationid="" radius-location-name=""
[admin@Mikrotik] >

7.2. Add HOTSPOT server;

[admin@Mikrotik] > /ip hotspot add name="WiFi" interface=wlan1 addresspool="wifi-pool" profile="wi-fi AAA" [admin@Mikrotik] > /ip hotspot print Flags: X - disabled, I - invalid, S - HTTPS # NAME INTERFACE ADDRESS-POOL PROFILE IDLE-TIMEOUT wi-fi AAA 0 X WiFi wlan1 wifi-pool 5m [admin@Mikrotik] > /ip hotspot enable 0 [admin@Mikrotik] > /ip hotspot print Flags: X - disabled, I - invalid, S - HTTPS # NAME INTERFACE ADDRESS-POOL PROFILE IDLE-TIMEOUT 0 WiFi wlan1 wifi-pool wi-fi AAA 5m [admin@Mikrotik] >

NOTE: The name of the HOTSPOT server should be WiFi (the same as the special destination for WiFi service in PortaBilling).

8. Connect to WiFi router.

Select the WiFi network and click Connect.

((0))	MikroTik	Connected 👷
	Unsecured wireless network	

9. Get online.

- Launch your web browser;
- Enter your MikroTik's IP address (configured on the step 1) in the browser's **Address** field;
- Enter your Account Id and VoIP password.

File Edit	t View Fa	avorites	Tools	Help											_
G Back	- 0	×	2	۵	Search	r 📌 Favo	rites 📀	8-	4	W	•	1	-28		
Address	http://192	.168.0.2	1 <i>l</i> login					✓ →	Go	Links	»	b -	🌀 SnagIt	-	
					Ple	ease log on to	use the mi	krotik hots	pot se	rvice					
									-						
							login luui	1999528	-						
						pass	word	1	- 72						
							OF								
						٨	1:1		704						
						N	/IIKrO	IIK							
					p	owered by mi	krotik route	ras (8.200	5 mikr	ntik					
						en ar a d by fill									
(>
•									1		1 1				-

Mikrotik hotspot > status Microsoft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	🕂 🖉
🕞 Back 🔹 🐑 👻 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Fax	vorites 🚱 🔗 • 嫨 🔟 • 📙 鑬 🦓
Address http://192.168.0.21/status	🔽 🔁 Go 🛛 Links 🎽 👘 😴 SnagIt 🧮 📺
Wel	Icome 000999528!
IP add	dress: 192.168.0.21
bytes up/o	down: 19.6 KiB / 25.9 KiB
connected	/ left: 4m1s / 15m28s
status re	fresh: 1m
li l	status log off
<	
Cone	🥥 Internet

Checklist

Print the following page and use it to check off the operations you have completed while performing system setup according to the instructions in this chapter. Please be sure to perform all of the operations (all of the boxes must be checked), otherwise the service will not work.

Operation	D	one
General configuration		
Enter company data under My Company.	[1
Specify a base currency.	[1
For any other currency you plan to use, specify the exchange rate	[1
source and define exchange rates.		
Create a symbolic destination WiFi.	[]
Network configuration	_	-
Add node on the web.		
Configure your gateway.	[1
Rating configuration	-	-
Create a tariff A, which will be applied to prepaid WiFi users.	[1
Insert rates in tariff A for a symbolic WiFi destination.	[1
Create a tariff B, which describes your termination costs.	[]
Insert rates in tariff B for a symbolic WiFi destination.	[]
Create your prepaid product.		
Create one accessibility entry in account's product, using the	[]
node you created and tariff A.		
Create a vendor.	[]
Create a connection for this vendor with the Wi-Fi service type,	[]
using tariff B.		
Account provisioning		
Create a retail customer who owns the WiFi cards.	[]
Generate accounts for this customer.	[]
Testing		
Mikrotik Configuration.	[]

Initial Configuration of PortaSwitch



TIP: When the system has just been installed, use username **pb-root** and password **pb-root** to login.

The following steps are normally performed only once, after the system is installed:



Visit **My Company** on the main menu. Enter information about your company and set up a base currency. Naturally, this does not limit your operations to this currency only. However, on cost/revenue reports and the like different currencies will be converted to the one you specify here.

NOTE: Once you set up a base currency it cannot be changed. If you make a mistake, you will have to start with a new PortaBilling environment.

From the main menu, choose **Users** and create login entries for users who will be working with the system. It is not recommended that the default PortaBilling root user (pb-root) be used for any operations other than initial set-up. Make sure you are able to login as the newly-created user and change the password for the pb-root user.

If you plan to do billing in multiple currencies, define these in the **Currencies** section and specify exchange rates in **Exchange Rates**.

Create Destination

You need to create the same destination as the name of HOTSPOT server you specified in step 7 above (Configure HOTSPOT server.) when you set up your network components; in this case it will be WiFi.

- 1. In the **Rating** section of Admin-Index, choose **Destination**.
- 2. Click on the 🖸 Add button.
- 3. Fill in the required information. The country subdivision is optional. You can use the Description column to store some extra information about the destination.

۵	II \$ 88 🛉	2 h 🛩 🔍		Destinations	America/Vancouver	demoroot	P Help				
•	🗄 Add 🖬 Save	: 🛞 Close 💽 Download 💽	Get default set	萬 Upload		💵 Logout	目 Log				
	Prefix Country Description > A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q R S T U Y W X Y Z										
Edit	Prefix *	Country	S	ubdivision	Description						
	WiFi	Not Applicable	Not Applic	able 🔽	Symbolic WIFi Destination						
	1201	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA									
	1202	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA									
	12021	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA									
	1203	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA									

4. Click **Save**.

Create Nodes

This step is only required if you have not entered your gateways into the system before. In this case, you must enter your gateways as nodes. PortaBilling requires some key information about your network equipment such as IP address, Node ID, Radius shared secret, etc.

~		(A)	00			(A)		M			- 1- 14								
ത		\$	ŭõ.	<u>n</u>	60	en-	2	Q		N	ode M	anage	ment		😲 Ameri	ca/Vancouver	demoroot	2	Help
-		Add	8	Close	_												PI Logout		Log
									Node ID		IP	RAI	OIUS Client						
												O Yes	ON0 ⊙All	Show Noc	des				
						Nar	ne		Node ID		1	Р	Manufacturer	Туре	RADIUS Clier	nt Delete			
₼			00	*	0.0 0	4	~	Q			Ad	d Nod	8						
•		Save		Save	& Cl	ose	8	Close									N Logout	1	
			2																
			Nod	le Nan	ne [Mikro	tik W	iFi	*										
			mar	nufactu	urer [Mikr	otik	~											
			Тр	e	[ROUT	ER 💊	/											
			5.			_													
			Е.	Nod	e info	D													
			Node ID					roik rotik, local, cr		*	RADI	IS Client							
			NAS-IP-Address																
			NAS	5-1P-A0	aares	55 -	-		192.168.0.214		_	RADI	JS Key	mikro	otik	Auto			
			Auth	n. Trar	isl. R	tule [?					RADI	JS Source IP	192.3	168.0.214	*			
			2.									RADI	JS Dictionary	Cisco	ı				
			а.									POD	Server						
			2																
				_															
奋		\$		•	8	^•	~	Q		N	ode M	anage	ment		O Amerio	ca/Vancouver	demoroot	?	Help
•	•	Add	8	Close													► Logout	B	Log
	. –		-		_														,
									Node ID		IP	RAI	OIUS Client						
												○Yes	ONO OAII	Show Noo	des				
						Nar	ne		Node ID		I	Р	Manufacturer	Туре	RADIUS Clier	nt Delete			
					77.	88.77	.99		77.88.77.99		77.88	.77.99	Cisco	VOIP-GW	2	×			
					Der	moSI	<u>P</u>	C	lemosip.mydomain	i.com	207.52	.37.45	PortaOne	Generic	2				
					Mik	rotik \	<u>NiFi</u>		mikrotik.local.co	m	192.168	3.0.214	Mikrotik	ROUTER	2	×			

- 1. In the Networking section of the Admin-Index page, choose Nodes.
- 2. In the Node management window, click the **Add** icon.
- 3. Fill in the New Node form:
 - Node Name A short descriptive name for this node (will be used in the select menus).
 - Manufacturer Select Mikrotik.
 - **Type** VoIP node type; select **ROUTER**.
 - **Node ID** Mikrotik server host name (recommended hostname.domainname).
 - **NAS-IP-Address** IP address of the gateway.
 - Auth. Translation rule Leave this empty for now; see the *Translation Rules* section of the PortaBilling Administrator Guide.

- **RTP Proxying** Leave the default selection (Optimal); this parameter is not used for the WiFi Internet access service.
- **Radius Client** Check this box, since this node will be communicating with the billing system.
- **Radius Key** Enter the shared secret here; it must be the same as that configured in NAS as a **key** in the radius server configuration.
- Radius Source IP See the Node ID, NAS IP address, and Radius source IP section of the PortaBilling Administrator Guide. Unless your gateway has multiple network interfaces, the value here should be the same as the NAS-IP-Address.
- **POD Server** this checkbox relates to ISP billing. Leave it unchecked for now.
- 4. Click Save&Close.
- 5. Repeat steps 2-4 until all of your nodes have been entered.

Create a Tariff

The tariff is a single price list for the use of WiFi services. At least two tariffs should be created to provide WiFi services successfully:

- A tariff for each account's billing scheme, these tariffs are created as "Applied to: Customer";
- A tariff with the termination costs for each termination partner you have; these tariffs are created as "Applied to: Vendor".

To create the required tariffs, follow the next steps:





3		00	1	Þ	- Q				Add	Fariff					er demoroot	2	
	🖬 Save		Save & Clo	se 🤅	🖲 Close	:									M Logout		Log
					Nam	e	WiFi			*	Currenc	y USD - US D	ollar	*			
					Appl	ied To	Custom	er		*	Service	Wi-Fi		~			
					Man	aged By	Admini	strator	only	*							
					_												
						General	[Info										
					Defau	lt Off-Pe:	ak Period	Night			~	•					
					Desti	nation Gr	oup Set				~	•					
	- E.				Free :	Seconds		0									
					Post	Call Surc	harge	0	%								
					Login	Fee		0									
	- E.				Conn	ect Fee		0									
					Roun	d Charge	d Amoun	t xxxxx.	XXXXX								
					Defau	ilt Formu	la					3	S.				
					Short	Descript	ion										
					Desci	iption											
	V																
				A	- @			-					-				
		<u></u>			~			EC	lit Tar	iff 'W	IFI'		🕲 Am	erica/Vancouv	er demoroot	2	Help
	Save		Save & Lio	ose	S Llos	: 🔟 U	ownload	📑 Upi	oad	Rates	🕑 les	t			PU Logout		Log
			Nama		-] * . c		100							
			Name Applied To	Cus	tomer			j cu Sei	vice \	Vi-Fi							
			Gene	ral Info	o Wet	Upload	& Downlo	ad Em	ail Upload	l Note	pad						
		-	Dofoult Off	Dook	Deried												
			Delault Oli-	Crour	Rot	Night			Y								
			Eroo Socor	i Gruuk	Joel	•			· · ·								
			Pried Secur	ius urchar	an	0 00000	96										
			Login Fee	ureman	90	0.00000											
			Connect Fr	e		0.00000	USD										
			Round Cha	-			_										
				irged A	\mount	XXXXX.X	xxxx										
			Default For	irged A mula	4mount	xxxxx.x	****)		* ∕≁						
			Default For Short Desc	irged A mula ription	kmount	xxxxx.x	xxxx				*						
			Default For Short Desc Descriptior	rged A mula ription	mount	*****	xxxx				%						

- 1. In the Rating section of Admin-Index, choose Tariffs.
- 2. On the Tariff Management page, choose 🖪 Add.
- 3. Fill in the **New Tariff** form:
 - **Name** A short name for the tariff object; this is the name you will then see in the select menus.
 - **Currency** Indicates in which currency pricing information is defined. All pricing information for a single tariff must be defined in the same currency.

NOTE: The currency for the tariff may be chosen only once, and cannot be changed later.

- Applied To Designates whether this tariff will be used to charge your prepaid customers (in this case, choose a **Customer**) or to calculate costs associated with your vendors (in this case, choose a **Vendor**).
- **Managed By** Choose "**Administrator Only**" here (this option is only visible after you select **Applied to: Customer** above).
- o Service Choose Wi-Fi here.

- Default Off-peak Period If you do not differentiate between peak and off-peak rates, just choose Not defined; otherwise, select one of the previously defined off-peak periods.
- Short Description A short tariff description. This will be shown in the rate lookup on the admin interface and the self-care pages for your accounts and customers.
- **Description** An extended tariff description.
- 4. Click **Save**.
- 5. Repeat steps 1-4 until you have entered all of the tariffs.

Enter Rates

Rates are per-destination prices. Please refer to the *Call Billing Parameters* chapter in the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide** for more information on billing parameters.

Managing Rates Online

Managing rates online is very convenient for maintaining existing rate tables, as well as for reference purposes. For new price lists or major updates, an offline method is better.

🕼 II \$ 88 🛉 Pr (Rates for tariff	'WiFi'	America/Vancouver	demoroot	🛛 Help
🕨 🖻 🛔 🖬 Save 🛞 C	ilose 🖪 Upload 🗏 Taril	f			N Logout	目 Log
	Effective From	Destin Pref	ation ix Group Country			
Edit Destination Country Description	Peak/Off-Peak	Interval, second First * Next *	Price, USD/ minute First * Hext *	Effective From YYYY-MM-DD HH24:MI:55*	i / 🗑 🗢	Delete
	NOT DEFINED					
▲ II \$ 23 k 10 (Rates for tariff '	'WiFi'	America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
🕨 🗄 Add 🗟 Save 🛞 🕻	Elose 🖪 Upload 🗏 Tari	ff			🕅 Logout	目 Log
	Effective From	Destin Pref	ation ix Group Country			
Edit <u>Destination</u> * Country Description	Peak/Off-Peak	Interval, second First * Hext *	Price, USD/ minute First * Next *	Effective From YYYY-MM-DD HH24:MI:55*	: 4 🕅 🗢	Delete
WiFi	Night 💌	60 60 60	0.020 0.020 0.015 0.015	immediately		×
`						

ຝ	II \$ 8	4 • •		Rates fo	r tariff 'W	/iFi'	Q	America/Vancouver	demoroot	🕐 Help
•	🔁 Add 🚺	🖬 Save 🛞 Clo	ose 🛃 Upload 📴 Tariff						🕅 Logout	目 Log
			Effective From		Destinati Prefix	on Group	Country			
F	De este este est	Country	Darah (Off Darah	Interval,	, second	Price, US	D/ minute	① Effective From	· •	Datata
Ealt	Destination "	Description	Реак/Оп-Реак	First *	Next *	First *	Next *	YYYY-MM-DD HH24:MI:55 *	/fx 🖪 🕕 🦕	Delete
			NOT DEFINED							
	WiFi	Not Applicable	Peak Off-Peak: Night	60 60	60 60	0.02000 0.01500	0.02000 0.01500	2010-02-01 04:46:50		

- 1. On the Tariff Management page you will see a list of available tariffs. Click the **Rates** icon before the name of the tariff. When you are in Tariff Management for a particular tariff, click on **Rates** in the toolbar.
- 2. In the Edit Rates screen, click 🖪 Add.
- 3. Fill in the required information:
 - **Destination** A symbolic destination prefix may be entered directly, or you can access the destinations directory by clicking the **Destination** link (in the column header).

NOTE: The phone prefix you are trying to create a rate for must already exist in Destinations.

- Interval First first billing unit in seconds.
- Interval Next next billing unit in seconds.
- **Price First** per-minute price for first interval.
- **Price Next** per-minute price for next interval.
- **Off-peak Interval First** first billing unit in seconds for off-peak time.
- Off-peak Interval Next next billing unit in seconds for offpeak time.
- Off-peak Price First per-minute price for first interval for offpeak time.
- Off-peak Price Next per-minute price for next interval for off-peak time.

NOTE: Off-peak fields appear only if an **off-peak period** has been defined for the tariff.

• Effective From – If you want this rate to take effect sometime in the future, you can either type in a date manually, or use the calendar (click the DD-MM-YYYY link).

NOTE: When using the calendar, you can specify that the date you are entering is in a different time zone than your present one. PortaBilling will then automatically adjust the time.

• Rate Formula Wizard 🏂 – launches the wizard for creating a custom rating formula

- Hidden, Forbidden or Discontinued flags are optional.
- 4. Click the **Save** button in the toolbar, or the **i** icon on the left side of the row.

Create a Product

Account for accessing your prepaid WiFi services will be issued for a specific product. Products are a powerful feature that defines different ways to bill an account. Product definition is always done in two steps: product definition and creation of an accessibility list.

۵	II \$	00	1	9:0 0	Þ	~ Q)	Pro	luct Ma	nagen	nent		🚯 Am	erica/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🔁 Add	8	Close												📲 Logout	目 Log
							ANY	Managed By	¥	S	earch	Search				
							\$?	Name	Currency	Manag	ed By	Description	n Delete			
	- 2															
奋			8 🛉	0,	•		Q		Add Pr	oduci	ŧ		() Americ	:a/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🖬 Sav	e	🛞 Clo	se											💵 Logout	
			Prod Mana	uct I Iged Gen	lame By ieral I	WIFI Admi:	nistrator on Maintenance Fe	ly V	Currend	C y USD	- US De	ollar		•		
	- 1		Breal	kade			0.1									
	- 1		Over	draft	Protec	tion	Debit acco	unts only	*							
	- 5		Acco	unt C	Default	ACL	Account se	lf-care	*							
	- 1		Defa	ult D	iscour	nt Plan	None		*							
	- 2		Info U	JRL			http://mikrot	ik.local.com								
			Desc	ripti	on		WiFi									
	j) 6			<u>s</u>									
۵	U		88 (<u>*</u>					Ed	it Produ	uct 'W	/iFi'		③ America	a/Vancouver	demoroot	2 Help
	Add	3 1	Sav	e duct	Name	e WiFi	Close 🕲 Clo	se 🙇 Rate L	ookup 4 Curre	Clone	D				Þ¶) Logout	E Log
			Mar	age	d By	Adm	inistrator only									
				Ge	eneral	Info	Maintenance	Online Signu	p Acces	sibility	Subscri	iptions !	Service Features	Notepad		
			Plea	se d	efine	at leas	t one accessibi	ility entry								

In the Rating section of the Admin-Index page, choose Products.

- 1. On the Product management page, click the 🖸 Add icon.
- 2. Fill in the "Add product" form:
 - **Product name** product object name.
 - **Currency** product currency; only tariffs which have the same currency will be permitted in the accessibility list.
 - Managed by If you want this product to be used for your reseller's accounts, so the reseller himself can change the parameters of this tariff and create new accounts using this product, choose a customer name from the menu. Otherwise, choose Administrator only here.

General Info tab

- **Breakage** Leftover balance which is considered "useless" (for statistical purposes). Accounts with a balance below breakage will be counted as *depleted*. This does not affect account authentication or authorization, so the account can still access wireless services if there is enough money left to cover at least the first interval.
- Account Default ACL The access level assigned by default to new accounts created with this product. The ACL determines which operations may be performed by accounts on the self-care pages. The default value is "Account self-care" (pre-defined ACL), which allows all possible operations.
- Default Discount Plan Leave None as the selected entry, since discount plans are typically used for postpaid services. Please refer to the description of volume-based discounts in the PortaBilling Administrator Guide for more details.
- Info URL If you have an external server with a description of product features, enter the URL here (e.g. http://www.myproduct.com). Your customers will be able to go there from their self-care page.
- **Description** your comments about the intended use of this product.

Maintenance tab

The Maintenance Fees functionality has been replaced by the Subscriptions module. Please use subscription plans to apply periodic charges for the WiFi service to your customers.

- 3. Click **Save**.
- 4. Click on the Accessibility tab to edit this product's accessibility.

Enter Node and Tariff into Product's Accessibility List

The accessibility list has two functions: it defines permitted access points (nodes and access numbers) and specifies which tariff should be used for billing in each of these points.



Porta 🗹 Switch

۵		\$	00 88	ŧ	: • 1	• ~			Add Acces	ssibility to	Product 'V	ViFi'	America		demoroot
•	🖬 S	ave		Save	& Clos	e (8	Close								💵 Logout
			P	roduc	t Curre	ncy	USD								
			s	ervice	,		Wi-Fi		~	1					
			N	ode			Mikro	tik WiFi	*						
			P	uthori	zation	Chunk			USD						
			Т	ariff *			WiFi		*						
۵			28	*	F (<u>ب</u>	2 Q		Edit P	roduct 'W	'iFi'	() America	/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🗎 A	١dd		Save		Save 8	Close	🛞 Close	💆 Rate Look	up 📋 Clone				NO Logout	📕 Log
	Product Name W/Fi Currency USD Managed By Administrator only														
l.				_											
					Genera	al Info	Main	tenance	Online Signup	Accessionility	Subscriptions	Service Features	Notepad		
				Wi-F	Genera	al Info	Main	tenance	Online Signup	Accessionility	Subscriptions	Service Features	Notepad		
				Wi-F Edit	Genera	al Info M	Main	tenance	Dnline Signup Access Code	Accessionity	Subscriptions	Service Features	Notepad		
				Wi-F Edit	Genera	al Info Mikro	Main lode otik WiFi	tenance	Access Code N/A	Accessibility Info Digits N/A	Subscriptions	Service Features	Notepad Delete		

- 1. When the Accessibility tab is selected, click on the 🖪 Add icon.
- 2. Choose **Wi-Fi** in the **Service** select menu.
- 3. In the Accessibility dialog box, select the Mikrotik node and choose the appropriate tariff which applies to customers using the WiFi service.
- 4. Click **Save** to save this accessibility entry.

Create Vendors

This step is only required if you have not entered information about your vendors into the system before. Vendors are your termination partners who will charge you for providing WiFi services.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. On the Vendor Management page, click **Add**.

ogout

Porta 🗹 Switch

4	III (\$	<u>99</u>	.		Ø			Ad	d Vendor			Americal/Jancouver	demorpot	12 Help
	Save		Eave & Close					710	u venuor					
	Jul Sure			- 1 -	ciose								4 Logout	
			Vendor Na	me 🐨	Fi Vendo	r	*		Currency	τ	USD - US Dollar	 ~		
									Opening Balar	nce o				
			Addre	ess Info	Addit	ional Info	User Interf	ace						
			Categorizir	ng and I	Defaults		-							
			Billing Peri	od		Daily	· 📕		~					
			Bilateral Tr	affic Ex	change									
			Offset Bala	nce Wit	h Custor	ner]						
			Minimum A	mount	To Offset			VSD						
							- V							
		-			_		•						1	
۵		88		3 2	Q			Ad	d Vendor			America/Vancouver	demoroot	🛛 Help
	🖬 Save		Save & Close	e 🛛 🏵	Close								NU Logout	
			Vendor Na	me 🐨	Fi Venda	r	*		Currency	Γ	ISD - US Dollar	~		
									Opening Balar	nce la			2	
			Addr	ess Info	Addi	ional Info	User Interf	ace						
			Login					Time Zone	e I	Europe	/Prague	~		
			Password				Auto	Web Interf	'ace Language 🕒	en - J	Inglish	*		
			Access Lev	/el Ver	dor		*							
			Output For	mat										
			Date	Y	YYY-MM	DD		2003-12	2-31		*			
			Time	F	H24:MI:	ss		User De	fined		*			
			Date & Tim	ne Y	үүү-мм	DD HH24:	MI:SS	User De	fined		*			
			input Form	at										
			Date	Y	YYY-MM	DD		2003-12	-31		*			
			Time	F	H24:MI:	SS		User De	fined		*			

3. Fill in the **Add Vendor** form. Please note that there are three tabs available on the screen. The most important fields are:

Main form (top)

- **Vendor Name** a short name for the Vendor object; this will be used on the web interface.
- **Currency** the currency in which this vendor charges you.
- **Opening balance** starting balance for the vendor; the default is zero.

Additional info

• **Billing period** – split period for vendor statistics.

User-Interface

- **Time zone** the time zone that the vendor uses for his billing period. Statistics will be split into periods in this time zone, so your statistics will match the vendor's.
- 4. Click Save&Close.
- 5. Repeat steps 2-4 to add all of your vendors.

Define Connections

Connections are points at which data leave or enter a network and are directed to or from vendors, whereby costing occurs.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. Click on the **Connections** icon next to the vendor name.

۵		\$	00	ŧ		4	~	Q	Vendo	or Man	agemen	t	④ America	/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	÷	Add	8	Close											M Logout	目 Log
										Searc) Search					
							xDR	s Name	Connections	Currency	Balance	E-mail	Delete			
							P	DID Supplier	🔀 2	USD	0.00000					
							Q	<u>GlobaNet</u>	🔀 3	USD	0.00000					
							2	<u>PortaDemo</u>	X 2	USD	0.08580		_			
							P	<u>WiFi Vendor</u>	• 0	USD	0.00000		×			
۵		\$	00	÷ 8	Þ) Q	Add (Connection	For 'W	/iFi Vend	or' Vendor	🕚 Ame	erica/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•		Save		5ave &	Close	. 8	Close								N Logout	目 Log
						Des Ser	criptio vice Ty	n WiFi terminat pe Vi-Fi	ion V]• Ty]•	pe	Default	~	•		
							Gene	al Info								
						Nod	e 1	likrotik WiFi		*						
						Port										
						Tarit	Ť L	lifi vendor tar	iff	*						
						Сар	acity 1	00		*						

- 3. Press **Add** to add a new connection.
- 4. Fill in the connection information. In the Service Type drop-down box, select Wi-Fi. In the Node drop-down box, choose the Mikrotik WiFi router which you previously added as a node. Choose the tariff which defines your termination costs for this connection/vendor. Description and Capacity are mandatory for all connection types.
- 5. Click **Save**.
- 6. Repeat steps 3-6 to add more connections to the same vendor, then click S Close in order to exit to the Vendor Management screen.
- 7. Repeat steps 2-7 to add connections for other vendors.

Create a Customer

A customer is an owner of accounts. The customer's contact information is used to distribute account usage information, wireless internet access statistics, invoices, and so on. Even if your company owns and distributes all of its prepaid WiFi, you will need at least one customer object for your company.

Porta 🏅 Switch

۵	II \$ 88 i			Ac	ld Custom	er		B America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🖬 Save 🖬 Save	e & Close 🛞 Clo	se						📲 Logout	
	Customer Name Blocked 🛛 🗍 Type R	viFi] letail	*	Currency Opening Balance Customer Class	USD - US D 0 Default cu:	ollar •	•			
	Address Info	User Interface	Dialing Rules	Additional Info	ayment Info	Service Features	Custom Fields			
	Company Name		M.I.	Contact [Phone [Fax [Alt. Phone] Alt. Contact [BCC] Description						
	Province/State Postal Code City Country/Region			Description						

- 1. In the **Participants** section of Admin-Index page, choose **Customers**.
- 2. On the Customer Management page, choose 🛃 Add Customer (In this example, we assume that you are creating the customer manually, so choose **Manually** from the drop-down menu (do not use any of the Quick Form options)).
- 3. Fill in the **New Customer** form. Please note that there are several tabs with extra information available on the screen. The most important fields are:

Main form (top)

- **Name** short name for the customer object; this will be used on the web interface.
- Currency the currency in which this customer will be billed.
- **Opening balance** a starting balance for the customer; the default is zero.
- **Type** Normally, most of your customers would be retail customers.
- **Customer Class** Choose the customer class you created in the previous step.

Address info tab

- **Email** An email address for the distribution of accounting information. After the billing period is over, a list of xDRs and other statistics will be sent to this address.
- **Bcc** Delivery to the specified email address of your account representative a copy of every outgoing email sent to the customer; this may be used for debug and archiving purposes.

Additional info tab

- **Billing period** Frequency of distribution of accounting information. For more details about different available billing periods, see the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide**.
- Send Statistics Summary only Distribute an event summary only, and do not attach a details file. Other options are full statistics (attach a complete list of xDRs) or do not send (no not deliver event statistics to this customer via email at all).

Payment info tab

• **Credit limit** – if left empty, then there is no credit limit for this customer.

User Interface tab

- Time zone the time zone in which the customer will see his xDRs and also that defines his billing period. For example, if you choose America/New_York here and the billing period is Monthly, this means the billing period will start on the first day of the month at 00:00 New York time.
- Web Interface Language language to be used on the customer self-care web interface.
- 4. Click Save&Close.

Generate Accounts

NOTE: Before generating accounts for a production system, read the section on "Provisioning prepaid accounts".

1. Go to the **Customers** screen (the screen which contains a list of customers). It should look like the screenshot below:

₫		\$	÷	• • • 0		Cus	tomer	Manage	ment				? Help
•	🗈 Ad	d 🛞	Close									🕅 Logout	目 Log
											_		
				Туре			Repre	sentative		Search	Advanced		
			Dire	ct Customers	*	ANY			~	Search	search		
			xDR:	s Name	Acc	ounts	Currency	Credit Limit	Balance	E-mail	Status Delete		
			Q	Asgard Teleicom		Q	USD		0.00000		×		
				Bandtel	(9	USD	0.00000	0.00000				
			Q	EasyCall Ltd.	(đ	USD		0.00000				
			\square	Gregory	(Ð	USD		0.47000	<u>c@aard</u>			
			Q	Internet Access	(đ	USD		0.00000				
				John Smith	(Ð	USD	100.00000	0.00000				
			Q	John Doe		Ð	USD		0.00000				
				SIP Subscribers	(9	USD		0.00000				
			Q	WIFI		G	USD		0.00000		×		
					 								

Porta 🌄 Switch

A E	<		Account	e of Do	tail Cust	omer 'WiEi	• 0 tmm	ica/Vancouver	demoraat	2 Hole
	idd	nerster 🕅 Cla	Account	S OF KE	can cust	omer wiri	- Allier	-copy directory di		ear meip
- 10 -			30						• ip Logouc	
	Acco	ount ID	Batch	Ct	rl #	SIP Status		Advanced		
		ANY		✓	A	NY 💌	Show Accounts	search		
6 🗉 🛙	\$ 🔡 🖌 📴 Þ		Account Ger	nerator f	or Retail	Customer "	WiFi' 🕓 A		demoroot	? Help
🕨 🗄 Ge	enerate 🛞 Close								M Logout	ĺ
	Number of accoun	ts 100	Product	USD - W	JiFi	*				
	Blocked	V	Opening Baland	e 10	*					
		1								
	Account Info	User Interface	Additional Info	Life Cycle	Service Feat	ures				
	Туре	💿 Debit 🔘 Cre	dit OVoucher							
	Inactive									
	Generation method	 Random 								
		 Sequential 								
		O DID Inventor								
	ID Deefer									
	ID Preix	98								
	ID Length	12								
	Service Password	 Empty 								
		🔘 Auto Generat	ed							
		🔘 Auto Generat	ed Digits Only							
	Batch	WiFi batch	New batch	*	•					

- 2. Next to the customer name, click on the Account \Box or \Box icon (the one in the **Accounts** column), which will take you to the account management for that customer.
- 3. Click on the Account generator.
- 4. Fill in the "Account generator" form:
 - Number of accounts number of accounts to be generated.
 - **Product** choose the product which you would like your accounts to have.
 - Blocked It is normal practice to generate all your prepaid WiFi cards as blocked, so they cannot be misused before being sold to the dealer or end customer. You can always unblock the whole batch of cards or an individual card later.
 - **Opening balance** the initial balance on the card.

Account Info tab

- **Type** Account type; select **Debit** for prepaid service.
- **Inactive** Check this if you want to generate the accounts as initially inactive.
- **Generation method** Choose **Random** here; this will assign every account a unique, randomly-generated PIN.
- ID prefix If you would like all of the generated accounts to start with the same digit string (e.g. 98), enter it here. Thus, if you enter 98 and an ID length of 10, account IDs (PINs) will look like this: 98NNNNNNN, where N = random digits.
- ID length All account IDs (PINs) will be numerical and of the specified length. In order to avoid problems with the prepaid card print-shop, PortaBilling will not generate account numbers with a leading zero. Also, PortaBilling will only allow generation of a batch with feasible parameters, e.g. it is impossible to

generate a batch of 1,000 accounts with ID length 4 and ID starting at 55.

- Starting ID Only available in Sequential generation and is always numeric.
- Service Password To improve security, you can use an account password during authentication, in addition to a PIN; this is highly recommended for the WiFi service. If you choose Empty, no password will be assigned to the account, and the password check will be switched off during authentication (so the customer can supply any password).
- **Batch** Accounts are grouped into batches. If a new batch name is provided in the text field, a new batch will be created when you add the account. Otherwise, an existing batch should be selected from the drop-down list.

User Interface tab

- Login If you choose Account ID (default), your customer will use his account ID (PIN) to login to the self-care pages. If you choose Empty, the account owner will not be able to use the self-care pages at all until a login has been assigned for his account.
- Password Auto-generated means that a random password for web access will be assigned for each account (these passwords will be included in the .CSV file with the account information). Empty means that no password will be assigned, so account owners will be able to login to the web interface simply by providing their account ID (PIN).
- **Time Zone** When an account owner accesses the web self-care pages to see a list of his active sessions, the time will be shown in the time zone most appropriate for him.
- Web Interface Language The language to be used on the account self-care web interface.

Additional Info tab

- **E-Commerce Enabled** If checked, this will allow your debit card owners to make online payments via the PortaBilling web interface. (Leave unchecked.)
- **Discount Plan** Applies a specific discount plan to this group of accounts. (Leave as **Product Default**).
- **Distributor** You can assign a specific distributor to this group of accounts.

Life Cycle tab

- Activation Date Account activation date.
- Expiration Date Account expiration date.

• **Life Time** – Relative expiration date; account will expire on "first usage date" + "life time" days. If you do not want to use this feature, leave the field blank.

NOTE: Account generation tasks are executed every few minutes, and it may take a while to generate large numbers of accounts.

Notification about the generated cards will be sent by email to the user who created them. A CSV file with information about the new accounts will be attached.

🛛 Microsoft Excel - AccountsShufflePrepaidWiFiwifibatch.csv																
:	Elle Edit View Insert Format Iools Data Window Help CIB pdf Type										Type a qu	Jestion for he	elp 💌	- 8 ×		
: 🗅	💕 🔒 [2 🔿	19 -	0	Arial		- 10	- 1	<u>s I U</u>	📰 🗄	≣≣	• a •	\$ %	€ 🔛 -	🕭 - 🛕	
	R2C1	•	fx	wifi-batcł	1											
	1	2		3	4		5		6		7		8	9	10	
1	Batch	Ctrl #	PIN		VoIP Pas	ssword	Web login		Web Pas	sword						
2	wifi-batch	1	753458	4854454			75345848	54454	oz9cgmp							<u>_</u>
3	wifi-batch	2	913556	6390263			91355663	90263	gjlo2l							
4	wifi-batch	3	959168	6213773			95916862	13773	2pjbnk							
5	wifi-batch	4	528433	0258852			52843302	58852	aqrk5ywj							
6	wifi-batch	5	384075	5795510			38407557	95510	s1hqkyls							
7	wifi-batch	6	380724	5594745			38072455	94745	h1ksgjq							
8	wifi-batch	7	378723	8295050			37872382	95050	eq2xwgip							
9	wifi-batch	8	498103	9538489			49810395	38489	jcjwvj0							
10	wifi-batch	9	875138	7933117			875138793	33117	sdnb8vh							
11	wifi-batch	10	465896	6194276			46589661	94276	av9zdil							
12	wifi-batch	11	350858	1005820			35085810	05820	olk2kd							
13	wifi-batch	12	829257	6359515			82925763	59515	g9tckhk							
14	wifi-batch	13	580731	0130481			58073101:	30481	qtu9lwi							
15	wifi-batch	14	898704	2633750			89870426	33750	3koujgr							
16	wifi-batch	15	921383	3334612			921383333	34612	o6fggk							~
I4 4		ccount	sShuffle	Prepaid	WiFiwifib /	/				()		1	U			>
Read	dy									Sun	n=1.506	92E+13				



Tip: In case the original email message was lost or accidentally deleted, the file containing generated accounts is stored on the slave PortaBilling server in the user **porta-admin** home directory, sub-directory *cards*.

Verify Wireless Internet Event History for Account

To view the xDR of an account, go to Customers, select the Customer owning the accounts, and click on the Accounts icon; or, alternatively, select **Account Info** in the Help Desk section of the Admin-Index page.



Porta 🏅 Switch

6	3	•	\$	00 00	ŧ	0.0 0	Þ	~	Q		Ac	counts	of Ret	ail Cus	itor	ner	'WiFi'		0	Americ	a/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•		🗈 Ac	id	٠	Accou	nt Ge	enerato	or	🛞 Clo	se												📲 Logout	
							Account ID			count ID Batch			Ctrl # SIP Status				Advanced						
										AN	Y	~			ANY		~	Show Accou	nts	<u>SE</u>	arch		
	Pages: 1 2 3 4 5							<u>5</u> T	otal: 5								1	–20 of	100				
							xDRs	A	Account	ID	ldle, days	Currency	Balance	Credit L	imit	Туре	Product	Batch	UM	Status	SIP		
							\square	<u>980</u>	005361	0799		USD	10.00000			Debit	<u>WiFi</u>	<u>WiFi batch</u>		•			
							\mathcal{Q}	980	006437	5865		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			
							\square	980	008911	6704		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			
							Q	<u>980</u>	011917	3072		USD	10.00000			Debit	<u>WiFi</u>	<u>WiFi batch</u>		•			
							\square	<u>980</u>	014646	8477		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	<u>WiFi batch</u>		•			
							\mathcal{Q}	980	018259	3575		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			
							\square	980	044534	3595		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			
							\bigcirc	<u>980</u>	049844	4111		USD	10.00000			Debit	<u>WiFi</u>	<u>WiFi batch</u>		•			
							\square	<u>980</u>	061299	7434		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			
							\mathcal{Q}	980	064526	7397		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			
							\square	<u>980</u>	069714	4052		USD	10.00000			Debit	<u>WiFi</u>	WiFi batch		•			
							\mathcal{Q}	980	074237	1005		USD	10.00000			Debit	<u>WiFi</u>	<u>WiFi batch</u>		•			
							\square	<u>980</u>	079921	9813		USD	10.00000			Debit	<u>WiFi</u>	<u>WiFi batch</u>		•			
							Q	980	084330	4920		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			
								980	085110	7509		USD	10.00000			Debit	WiFi	WiFi batch		•			



You can also go to the account self-care page (accessible via the **Accounts** menu item in the **Home** popup menu).

Login with the account's web access login and password. After that you will be able to see the account's dashboard interface with functional dropdown menus upper left. On the **Statistics** menu, click **xDR Browser**.

			Aco	count Logi	n						
•											
			Login Password	98005361079	9						
				Ý							
6	n 🎟 🕏 🕞	S Account self-care									
٠											
					Account ID	Balance	Status	;			
					980053610799	10.00000 USD	•				
		V									

₫			\$	~				Your xDR Histor	у		۲	Europe/Prague	980053610799	? Help
•	Q	🖲 Clo	ose		Download	🔳 Ser	vices Usage Details						🕅 Logout	
							📷 From 📷 To D Service	Date 2010-01-31	YYYY- YYYY-	MM-DD 15:06:10 HH24:MI MM-DD HH24:MI	:55 [*] :55 [*]			
~	ſ		e	.							<u>т</u>			
ഫ	1		\$	~			980053610799	[2] Help						
	1	<u>х</u> сі	ose		Download	🔳 xD	Rs 📋 Services Us	age Details					M Logout	
							Account	980053610799		Credits/Refunds	0.00000 USD			
							From	2010-01-31 15:06:10		Payments	0.00000 USD			
							То	2010-02-01 15:07:40		Subscriptions Charged	0.00000 USD			
							Charged by	WiFi' product		Services Charged	0.00000 USD			
							Туре	Debit		Total	0.00000 USD			
							Total Transactions	0						
	Show Totals By Services													
							No xDRs found.							

Choose the date range for which you want to see a list of wireless internet accesses, and click **Show xDRs.** In the results table you will see the charges and other fees, such as maintenance fees or refunds (if any). The report can be also downloaded by clicking the **Download** icon.



2. IPTV Services

This highly customizable IPTV solution enables PortaOne customers to generate additional revenue, raise profits, and increase customer satisfaction by delivering advanced television services.

IPTV Service Scenario

In a PortaSwitch-based network infrastructure, IPTV services are implemented by means of a LivingRoom module. They work in conjunction with the following:

- Kasenna LivingRoomTM Server (below: LivingRoom server)
- PortaBilling
- PortaOne LivingRoom Module (below: LivingRoom module)

This combination of services enables carriers to offer customers a wide portfolio of billable IPTV services, such as:

- TV user interface
- Broadcast TV
- Personal video recorder (PVR) services

In subsequent PortaBilling releases we plan to implement the following features:

- Video on demand (VOD)
- Pay per view (PPV)
- Music on demand



In conjunction with LivingRoom, PortaBilling offers you the ability to:

- set up periodic and per-event charges for IPTV services in PortaBilling;
- view charge records and subtotals for IPTV services on the web interface and the customer's invoice.

Kasenna LivingRoom — PortaBilling Interaction

- 1. An IPTV service in LivingRoom is activated for the subscriber when a credit account is created in PortaBilling.
- 2. PortaBilling terminates services in LivingRoom when the account, or the customer who owns it, is suspended or terminated.
- 3. PortaBilling adds information on services provided and charges incurred to the customer's bill.

The following diagram explains the relationship between basic concepts in PortaBilling and LivingRoom:

- An account in PortaBilling corresponds to a subscriber in LivingRoom.
- A PortaBilling product is similar to a LivingRoom service plan.
- A package or set of channels in LivingRoom corresponds to a subscription in PortaBilling.
- A service region in LivingRoom describes a geographical region, and the same package may represent a different set of channels for each region.



• Thus the combination of service plan plus service region corresponds to a PortaBilling product, while the combination of service region plus package corresponds to a PortaBilling subscription.

Consider the following example:

An IPTV provider uses LivingRoom with the following assets:

- 2 service regions called "Bonaire" and "Rincon";
- 3 packages: Basic, Expanded, Premium;
- 2 service plans: "Basic Choice", containing the Basic package, and "Full", containing all available packages.

Thus four products should be created in PortaBilling using the naming convention <Service Plan>/<Service Region>, as follows:

- Basic Choice/Bonaire
- Full/Bonaire

- Basic Choice/Rincon
- Full/Rincon

We will also use two different subscription types to charge subscribers for IPTV services:

- 1. Subscriptions for configuring LivingRoom services.
 - The LivingRoom module will recognize such subscriptions by the slash in their name. The naming convention for these subscriptions is <Package>/<Service Region>.
 - In our example, we need four subscriptions. If necessary, we can add them later to existing accounts:
 - o Expanded/Bonaire
 - o Expanded/Rincon
 - o Premium/Bonaire
 - o Premium/Rincon
 - Please note that there is no need to create a subscription for the Basic package, since both service plans already include it.
- 2. Subscriptions for charging accounts in PortaBilling.
 - We will use the naming convention <Service Plan> (Service Region) so that the LivingRoom module will ignore such subscriptions. You may also use your own method of naming, as long as it does not use the slash character.
 - In our example, we need four subscriptions:
 - o Basic Choice (Bonaire)
 - o Basic Choice (Rincon)
 - o Full (Bonaire)
 - o Full (Rincon)
 - Please note that obligatory subscriptions (assigned to an account through a product) are always ignored by the LivingRoom module. Subscriptions assigned directly to an account will only affect the configuration if the LivingRoom server conforms to the convention. The LivingRoom module will ignore all other subscriptions.
Checklist

Print the following page and use it to check off the operations you have completed while performing system setup according to the instructions in this chapter. Please be sure to perform all of the operations (all of the boxes must be checked), otherwise the service will not work.

Operation	Done
Set up Kasenna LivingRoom server.	[]
Configure PortaBilling.	[]
Network configuration	
Create corresponding subscriptions.	[]
Create corresponding products.	[]
Account provisioning	
Create a retail customer.	[]
Generate accounts for this customer.	[]
Testing	
Login to Kasenna LivingRoom server and check for subscribers.	[]

Set up the Kasenna LivingRoom[™] Server

Please refer to **Espial** for guidelines on how to set up the LivingRoom server. You should complete the steps for all the components, except for the Subscribers section.

Configure PortaBilling

The following code must be added to the configuration file located in /home/porta-admin/etc/porta-admin.conf on the **Slave** server.

```
[LivingRoom]
Env=<LivingRoomEnv>
EMail=<EMailToReportErrors>
# Delay between sessions, sec
Delay=30
#LogFile=/var/log/porta/living_room.log
#LockFile=/home/porta-admin/run/living_room.lock
```

The PortaBilling LivingRoom module works in a single environment, whose name should be set for the Env variable. Error and alert messages will be distributed to email and BCC addresses. The delay corresponds to the frequency (in seconds) of checks for changes in the database. All module activities are logged.

Create Subscriptions

۵	≣ \$		Q	Add Subscription Plan	③ America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🖬 Save	🝙 Save & Close	🛞 Close			🕅 Logout	
		Name Managed By General	Expanded no Administration	r only V			
		Invoice Line De	escription	Expanded			
		Subscription Is	Activated	At the given start date			
		Activation Fee		EUR			
		Minimum Subs	scription Period	Months			
		Early Cancella	tion Penalty	EUR			
		Subscription C	harges Applied	At the end of the billing period 💙			
		Periods In Adv	ance				
		Round Charge	d Amount	XXXXX.XX000			
		Description					
۵		88 i P Þ	~ Q	Add Subscription Plan	() America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🗈 Add	🖬 Save 📓 Sav	re & Close 🛞	Close		💵 Logout	

🔠 🗉 🔛	i 🗗 Þ	Z Q		Add Su	ubscrip	tion Pla	n						? Hel
🕨 🖻 Add 🖬 S	iave 🗟 Sav	e & Close 🛞 Close										💵 Logout	
_	Name Managed By General I	Expanded/Bonaire Administrator only	, N	_* c	urrency	EUR - eu	ro		V			_	
	Edit Un/Down	Default/promotional	Month	ly Billing	Bi-wee	kly Billing	Week	y Billing	Daily	Billing	Delete		
	Luit op bottin	rate	N *	Fee, EUR *	N *	Fee, EUR *	H *	Fee, EUR *	N *	Fee, EUR *	001000		
		Default Rate	unlimited	39.00000	unlimited	19.50000	unlimited	9.10000	unlimited	1.30000	×		
	Monthly Billing			Bi-weekly Billing			iy Billing		Daiț	/ Billing			
	1unlimited: 39.00000 EUR				UR	1unlimited	:9.10000 E	UR 1	unlimited	:1.30000 EU	UR		

- 1. In the **Rating** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Subscription Plans**.
- 2. On the Subscription Plan Management page, click the 🖸 Add icon.
- 3. Fill in the "Add Subscription Plan" form:
 - **Product name** The product object name.
 - **Currency** The product currency.
 - Managed by Choose Administrator only.

General Info tab

• **Invoice Line Description** – The description to appear on the invoice sent to the customer (IPTV subscriber).

Periodic Fees tab

- Click the **Edit icon** and enter the rates for periodic billing. PortaBilling will auto-fill the form after the rate for monthly billing has been entered. You can edit rates or add new rates for the same subscription.
- Click **Save**.

4. Repeat the above procedure for all eight subscriptions:

1	1	\$	88	ŧ	0	4	~	Q		Subso	ription	Plan Manag	ement		٩	America/Vancouver	demoroot	🕐 Help
•	•	Add [۲	Close													📲 Logout	目 Log
										Manage	d By	Se	earch					
										Name	Currency	Managed By	Description	Delete				
									Basic	c Choice (Bonaire	EUR	Administrator only						
									Basic	<u>c Choice (Rincon)</u>	EUR	Administrator only		×				
									Expa	inded/Bonaire	EUR	Administrator only						
									Expa	inded/Rincon	EUR	Administrator only						
									<u>Full (</u>	(Bonaire)	EUR	Administrator only		×				
									Full ((Rincon)	EUR	Administrator only		×				
									Prem	Premium/Bonaire		Administrator only		×				
									Prem	nium/Rincon	EUR	Administrator only						

Create Products

۵		:: •	0;0 0	Þ	2				Add Produc	ŧ			demoroot	🛛 Help
•	🖬 Save	🛞 Clos	e										🕅 Logout	
			D				. (2		C					
	- 1		Pro	Dauct	Name B	asic Cl	noice (Bonaire)		Currency RUR	- euro		~		
			Wa	naget	пра и		scracor only	-						
	- 1			Ger	neral Info	Ma	intenance Fee							
	- 1		Bre	eakage	е	-)							
	- E		Ove	erdraft	t Protectio	n [Debit accoun	ts only	~					
	- 1		Acc	counti	Default A	L	Account self	-care	¥					
			Def	fault D	Discount P	lan [None	1	*					
	- 1		Info	URL										
			Des	scripti	ion	Γ								
	-					L								
۵			•	€	Q		Edi	t Product	'Basic Choi	ce (Bonaire	e)' (
•	🖬 Save	🖬 Sav	e & Cl	lose	🛞 Clos	e 💈	🛙 Rate Lookup	Clone					M Logout	📒 Log
							al 1 (b 1		C	10				
			P N	Produk Manac	ct Name	Basic	Choice (Bonai	re)	Currency E	JR .				
				nanay	Jeu Dy	Aurin	instrator only							
			_	(General I	nfo	Maintenance	Online Signu	Accessibility	Subscriptions	Service Features	Notepad		
			B	3reaka	ade		0.00000		EUR					
			c	Overdr	raft Proter	tion	Debit acco	unts only	*					
			۵	Accou	nt Default	ACI	Account se	lf-care	~					
				Dofoul	It Diecour	d Dian	None		~					
			L r	ofe LI			None							
			II II	niu Or Doceri	RL intion									
			L	Jestn	ipuon									

In the Rating section of the Admin-Index page, choose Products.

- 1. On the Product Management page, click the **Add** icon.
- 2. Fill in the "Add product" form:
 - **Product name** The product object name.
 - **Currency** The product currency.
 - Managed by Choose Administrator only.

General Info tab

- **Breakage** Leftover balance which is considered "useless" (for statistical purposes); leave as 0.
- Account Default ACL The access level assigned by default to new accounts created with this product. The default value is "Account self-care" (pre-defined ACL), which allows all possible operations.
- Default Discount Plan Leave None as the selected entry, since discount plans are typically used for postpaid services. For more details, please refer to the description of volume-based discounts in the PortaBilling Administrator Guide.
- Info URL If you have an external server with a description of product features, enter the URL here (e.g. http://www.myproduct.com). Your customers will be able to go there from their self-care page.
- **Description** Your description of the intended use of this product.

Subscriptions tab



- Click the **Add** icon to add a subscription to the selected product.
- Click the **Reapply Subscription** button when adding/changing a subscription to apply the new settings to all accounts using this product.
- 3. Repeat the procedure for all four products.

₼	▦	\$	80	ł	80	Þ	~	Q			Produ	uct	Management	America/Vancor	Jver	demoroot	? Help
•	÷ A	١dd	۲	Close											1	🖞 Logout	目 Log
											Managed by		Search				
									AI	NY		*	Search				
				\$?		N	ame		Curi	rency	Managed by		Description		Delete		
				🧭 E	lasic	: Choi	ce (B	onaire)	E	TUR	Administrator only	/			×		
				Ø	asic	Choi	ce/Ri	ncon	E	UR	Administrator only						
				<u>ø</u> E	ull/B	Ionain	e		E	UR	Administrator only						
				<u>ø</u>	ull/R	Rincon			E	UR	Administrator only						

Create Customer and Account

Creating a credit account in PortaBilling using a related product will automatically create a corresponding subscriber in LivingRoom, where Subscriber ID = Account ID, and the LivingRoom service plan corresponds to the PortaBilling product.

III \$ 88 4				A	dd Custom	er				
🖬 Save 🗟 Sa	ave & Close	🛞 Clos	ie 🛛						り Logout	L
Customer Name	IPTV Custo	mer	×	Currency	EUR - euro		~			
Blocke				Opening Balanc	e o					
Туре	Retail			Customer Class	3 Default cus	tomer class	~			
Andress In	o User Int	erface	Dialing Rules	Additional Info	Payment Info	Service Features	Custom Fields			
Company Name				Contact						
Mr./Ms.				Phone						
First Name			M.I.	Fax						
LastName				Alt. Phone						
Address				Alt. Contact						
				E-mail						
				BCC						
				Description						
Province/State										
Postal G ode										
_										
City	ve & Close	✓ Q⊗ Clos	e 🗐 xDRs	Edit Custo	omer 'IPTV Accounts 💡	Customer' E-Payments Log	(Invoices	B America/Vancouver	demoroot	
City	ve & Close	✓ Q⊗ Clos	e 🔳 xDRs	Edit Custo	Accounts	Customer' E-Payments Log	(Invoices	America/Vancouver Terminate	demoroot	
City	IPTV Custo	Clos	e 🔳 xDRs	Edit Custo	Accounts	Customer' E-Payments Log	e Invoices 🕻	3 America/Vancouver	demoroot	
City	IPTV Custo	Clos	e 🗏 xDRs	Edit Custo	Accounts	Customer' E-Payments Log	(Invoices 🕻	America/Vancouver Terminate	demoroot	
City	IPTV Custo	Clos	e 🖹 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balance Balance Customer Class	Accounts 2 0.00000 EUR 0.00000 EUR 0.00000 EUR Default cus	Customer E-Payments Log	0 Invoices 2	America/Vancouver Terminate	demoroot	
City Save S Save Customer Name Blocked Type	IPTV Custo	© Clos mer Dialing	e xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets	Accounts 0.00000 EUR 0.00000 EUR 0.00000 EUR Default cus Notepad See	Customer E-Payments Log tomer class	(Invoices E	O America/Vancouver Terminate	demoroot 바다 Logout	
City Save Sove So Customer Name Blocked Type Taxation Address In	IPTV Custo	Clos Clos Dialing mance	e a xDRs , , Subscriptions User Interfac	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets Dialing Rules	Accounts 0.00000 EUR 0.00000 EUR Default cus Additional In	Customer ⁴ E-Payments Log toner class svice Features P Payment In	C Invoices E ermitted SIP Pro fo Custom Fie	3 America/Vancouver 3 Terminate wites elds	demoroot 아파 Logout	
City Save Save Save Blocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name	Porte Close IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne Do	Clos Clos Dialing mance anno Onli	e a xDRs , Subscriptions User Interfac	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact	Accounts I PTV Accounts I Cus D000000 EUR Default cus Notepod Se Additional II Ascept Teevee	Customer ⁴ E-Payments Log toner class svice Features P Info Payment In	(Invoices ermitted SIP Pro fo Custom Fid	3 America/Vancouver 3 Terminate wies elds	demoroot 야한 Logout	
El Customer Name Blocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr/Ms J	PortaOne Do Mr.	Clos Clos mer Dialing mance mo Onli	e 🗈 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone	Accounts IPTV Accounts I and Accounts I and Accounts I and Accounts I and Accounts I and Account	Customer ⁴ -Payments Log toner class svice Features P ifo Payment In	C Invoices C ermitted SIP Pro fo Custom Fig	3 America/Venceuver 3 Terminate wites elds	demoroot	
City Save Save Save Blocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name MrJMsJ First Name	IPTV Custo IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne Do Mr. Joseph	Cos Close mer Dialing mance mo Onli	e 🛛 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax	Accounts and the second	Customer' E-Payments Log tonier class rvice Features P nfo Payment In	Invoices E	3 America/Vanceuver 3 Terminate xxies elds	demarcak	
City Save Sove Blocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr./Ms./ First Name Last Name	IPTV Custo IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne Do Mr. Joseph Teevee	Cos C	e 🛛 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt. Phone	Accounts 00000 EUR 00000 EUR 00000 EUR Default cus Notepad Se Additional Ir 195631479358	Customer' E-Payments Log	rmitted SIP Pro	3 AmericalVancouver 3 Terminate	democod	
City Save Sove So Customer Name Biocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr/Ms/ First Name Last Name Address	IPTV Custo IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Maintee PortaOne Dr Mr. Joseph Teevee 123 Cham	Close Close mer Dialing mance mo Onli mance mo Onli mance	e 🗈 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt. Phone Alt. Contact	Accounts 2010 Accounts 2010 Accoun	Customer' E-Payments Log toner class rvice Features Pafo Payment In	ermitted SIP Pro	3 AmericalVancouver 3 Terminate xxies elds	demorect	
City Save Save Save Save Save Save Save Save	IPTV Custo IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne D Mr. Joseph Teevee 123 Chan:	Close Close mer Dialing cnance	e 🗈 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt. Phone Alt. Contact E-mail	Accounts Accounts 000000 EUR 000000 EUR Default cus Additional II Additional II Additio	Customer' E-Payments Log tomer class rvice Features Pafo Payment In	ermitted SIP Pro	3 AmericalVancouver 3 Terminate	demoroid IPD Logout	
City Save Sove Sove Customer Name Blocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr/Ms/ First Name Last Name Address	PTV Custo IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne Dr Mr. Joseph Teavee 123 Chan:	Other O	e 🗊 xDRs * Subscriptions User Interfac MI.	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balance Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt Phone Alt Contact E-mail BCC	Accounts IPTV Accounts I Current D00000 EUR Default current Additional Ir Instein Terese Bescharpson	Customer' E-Payments Log	ermitted SIP Pro	3 America/Vancouver 3 Terminate	democol ₽₽ Logout	
City Save Save Save Customer Name Blocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr/MsJ First Name Last Name Address	PTV Custo	Original and a second sec	e i xDRs subscriptions User Interfac M1.	Edit Custo Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt. Phone Alt. Contact E-mail BCC	Accounts in the second	Customer E-Payments Log tomer class rvice Features fo Payment In	Invoices Invoices Custom Field	9 AmericalVanouver 3 Terminate wies elds	demonot	
City Save Save Save Customer Name Blocked Type Toxation Address In Company Name Mr/MsJ First Name Last Name Address	PTV Custo PTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne Do Mr. Joseph Teevee 123 Chann	Cos C	e 🗊 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt Contact E-mail BCC Description	Accounts IPTV Accounts I Current Curr	Customer E-Payments Log toner class rvice Features pfo Payment In	C Invoices C	America/Vancauver Terminate xxies elds	demonot	
City Save Save Save Blocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr/MsJ First Name Last Name Address	IPTV Custo IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortsOne Dr Mr. Joseph Teevee 123 Chemi	Cos C	e i xDRs * Subscriptions User Interfac M.I. enue	Edit Custo Batches Customer Class Customer Class Trouble Tickets Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt Phone Alt Contact E-mail BCC Description	Accounts 2010 Accounts 2010 000000 EUR Default cus Additional Is Additional Is Second	Customer' E-Payments Log	ermitted SIP Pro fo Custom Fit	3 America/Venceuver 3 Terminate wites elds	demonot	
City Save Save Save Biocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr/Ms/ First Name Last Name Address Province/State Postal Code City	IPTV Custo IPTV Custo Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne Do Mr. Joseph Teevee 123 Chan:	Otos Otos	e 🛛 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Att. Phone Att. Contact E-mail BCC Description	Accounts Accounts 00000 EUR 00000 EUR Default cus Additional Is Additional Is Additional Is Additional Is Portaone@gmail	Customer' E-Payments Log toner class rvice Features nfo Payment In .com	C Invoices C	3 America/Vanceuver 3 Terminate xxies elds	demoreck	
City Save Sove Sove Sove Customer Name Biocked Type Taxation Address In Company Name Mr/Ms/ First Name Last Name Address Province/State Postal Code City Country/Region	Retail Abbreviated fo Mainte PortaOne D Mr. Joseph 123 Chem	Otos Otos	e 🛛 xDRs	Edit Custo Batches Opening Balanc Balance Customer Class Trouble Tickets e Dialing Rules Contact Phone Fax Alt. Phone Alt. Contact E-mail BCC Description	Accounts Accounts 0.00000 EUR 0.00000 EUR Default cus Additional II Bis631479358 Dortaone@gmail	Customer' E-Payments Log totaer class rvice Features hfo Payment In hon	Invoices E Invoices E Image: state of the state o	3 America/Vancouver 3 Terminate xxies elds	demorect	

۵	II \$	88 k P	•	<u>~</u> Q	Αςςοι	unts of	Retail	Custome	er 'IP1	V Cus	tomer'	0	America/Van	couver	demoroot	? Help
•	🔁 Add	🗈 Account	Genera	ator 🛞 Close	•										M) Logout	
			A	Account ID	B	atch	v	Ctrl #	SIP : ANY	Status ¥	Show Acco	unts	<u>Advanced</u> <u>search</u>			
	v															
₫		88 🛉 🗄	• •		Add Acc	ount fo	r Reta	il Custo	mer 'I	IPTV C	ustomer'	۲	America/Vanc	ouver	demoroot	🛛 Help
•	Save	e 📄 Save &	Close	🛞 Close											💵 Logout	
		<u>Account ID</u> Blocked [986714	4793580002 ×	Prod Oper	luct ning Balano	EUR ·	- Basic Ch	oice (I	Bonai: 💙	•					
		Account	t Info	User Interac	e Subscri	ber Addi	tional Info	D Life Cycl	e Serv	vice Featu	ires Custon	n Fields	1			
		Type Credit Limit	(◯ Debit	edit OVou	cher										
	10	Service Passv	word		Au	to										
		E-mail	E													
	- E.	Batch	I	ΙΡΤν	None		*									
1	V															
ຝ	II \$	SS 🛉 🔛	Þ	~ Q	Αссοι	ints of	Retail(Custome	er 'IPT	V Cust	tomer'	۹	America/Van	couver	demoroot	? Help
•	🔁 Add	🗈 Account (General	tor 🛞 Close											M Logout	
			A	ccount ID	B	itch	v]	Ctrl #	SIP S ANY	Status V	Show Accou	unts	Advanced search			
		×DI	Rs 0 986	Account ID 571479358000:	Idle, days	Currency EUR	Balance 0.00000	Credit Limit	Type Credit	Pr Basic Cho	oduct bice (Bonaire)	Batch	UM Status	SIP		

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Customers**.
- 2. On the **Customer Management** page, click Add (In this example, we assume that you are creating the customer manually, so choose **Manually** from the drop-down menu (do not use any of the Quick Form options)).
- 3. Fill in the "Add Customer" form:
 - **Customer name** The customer object name.

Address Info tab

- Fill in the customer data as you want it to appear in the subscriber data on the LivingRoom server.
- 4. Save your work by clicking **Save**.
- 5. Click the 🖵 or 🗊 Accounts icon, which will take you to the account management for this customer.
- 6. Click the 🔁 Add icon.
 - o Fill in the "Add Account" form.

Account Info tab

- **Type:** Set the account type to Credit.
- **Batch:** Select from an existing batch, or create a new one. If you leave this field empty, the created account will not be tied to any specific batch.

Changing PortaBilling account subscriptions will automatically add or remove the corresponding LivingRoom packages for the subscriber.

Subscriber info data is obtained from the PortaBilling customer info.

Check Results on LivingRoom Server



3. Broadband Internet Access Services

This chapter describes how you can use PortaBilling to provision and define rates for broadband Internet access services (such as DSL, ADSL, cable, etc.)

The most typical broadband package types you can offer your clients include:

- Fixed bandwidth (download and/or upload) and unlimited data transfer, for a fixed monthly fee.
- Fixed bandwidth (download and/or upload) and a limited total data transfer amount, for a fixed monthly fee.
- A pay-as-you-go plan, where the customer is charged based on the amount of data transferred (per kilobyte, megabyte or gigabyte).

In this chapter we will show you how to:

- charge data transfers using tariffs;
- implement packages with a fixed monthly fee using subscriptions assigned to products;
- limit bandwidth for a product and/or an account;
- limit data transfers using discount plans.

You will also learn how to assign a static IP to an account and restrict the number of simultaneous Internet sessions with the same Account ID.

Examples of Broadband Packages

As an example, we will create three packages with the following specifications:

- 1. **Start**: 128 kbps upload and 512 kbps download bandwidth, unlimited data transfer, \$15.00 monthly.
- Pro: 512 kbps upload and 2 Mbps download bandwidth, 5 GB of data transferred during peak hours and 20 GB of data transferred during night hours, \$30.00 monthly. Data transfer above these thresholds is charged at \$20 per gigabyte.
- 3. **Premium**: 256 kbps upload and 1 Mbps download bandwidth, data transfer up to 10 GB, \$40.00 monthly. When the data transfer exceeds this threshold, the amount of available bandwidth will be severely reduced.

Please refer to the **PortaBilling100 Web Reference Guide** PDF for detailed instructions on how to navigate and operate the web interface, as along with detailed explanations of particular fields.

Checklist

Print the following page and use it to check off the operations you have completed while performing system setup according to the instructions in this chapter. Please be sure to perform all of the operations (all of the boxes must be checked), otherwise the service will not work.

Operation	Done
General configuration	
Enter company data under My Company.	[]
Specify a base currency.	ĺĺ
For any other currency you plan to use, specify the exchange rate	ĺĺ
source and define exchange rates.	
Create the symbolic destination NETACCESS.	[]
Create services.	[]
Network configuration	
Add a Cisco gateway as a node on the web.	[]
Rating configuration	
Create a tariff A which will be applied to Internet users.	[]
Insert rates in tariff A for the symbolic NETACCESS	[]
destination.	
Create a tariff B, which describes your termination costs.	[]
Insert rates in tariff B for the symbolic NETACCESS	[]
destination.	
Create subscriptions.	[]
Create a destination group set.	[]
Create a destination group.	[]
Assign the NETACCESS prefix to this destination group.	[]
Create a volume discount plan.	[]
Define discounts within this discount plan.	[]
Create a product.	[]
Assign this discount plan as the default one for the product.	[]
Create one accessibility entry in the account's product, using the	[]
node you created and tariff A.	
Apply a subscription to the product.	[]
Set a bandwidth limit for the product.	[]
Create a vendor.	[]
Create a connection for this vendor with the Internet Access	[]
service type, using tariff B.	
Account provisioning	
Create a customer.	[]
Create accounts for this customer.	[]
Assign a static IP and restrict the number of simultaneous	[]
sessions for accounts.	
Set a bandwidth limit for accounts.	[]

Initial Configuration of PortaSwitch



TIP: When the system has just been installed, use username **pb-root** and password **pb-root** to login.

The following steps are normally performed only once, after the system is installed:



Visit **My Company** on the main menu. Enter information about your company and set up a base currency. Naturally, this does not limit your operations to this currency only. However, on cost/revenue reports and the like different currencies will be converted to the one you specify here.

NOTE: Once you set up a base currency it cannot be changed. If you make a mistake, you will have to start with a new PortaBilling environment.

From the main menu, choose **Users** and create login entries for users who will be working with the system. It is not recommended that the default PortaBilling root user (pb-root) be used for any operations other than initial set-up. Make sure you are able to login as the newly-created user and change the password for the pb-root user.

If you plan to do billing in multiple currencies, define these in the **Currencies** section and specify exchange rates in **Exchange Rates**.

Create Destination

This step is only required if you have not defined the necessary destination before. If not, you will need to create a symbolic NETACCESS destination.

- 1. In the **Rating** section of Admin-Index, choose **Destination**.
- 2. Click on the 🖪 Add button.
- Fill in the required information. In the Description column, enter some useful information about the service being provided (e.g. Internet), since this is what your clients will see on their xDR History pages.

۵	III \$	88 🚯	10 P	~ Q			Destina	ions		America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🔁 Add	🖬 Save	e 🛞 Close	👿 Download	💌 G	iet default set	萬 Upload				🕅 Logout	目 Log
		•		Prefi	< C	ountry Des	cription 🕨	ABCI) E F G H I J K L M N O P	Q R S T U V W X Y Z		
Edit	Prefix	(*		Country		St	ubdivision			Description		
	NETACCESS		Not Appli	cable	*	Not Applica	able	*	Internet			
	1201		UNITED STA	TES OF AMERIC	A							
	1202		UNITED STA	TES OF AMERIC	A							

4. Click **Save**.

Create Services

Services provide a way to define how charges are calculated (e.g. whether customers are charged based on the time they stay online, or the amount of data transferred) and how these are then presented on their invoices.

ർ		88	1 🗗 🌬 🗹 C	1	Services	5				
•	🖪 Add	🖬 Sa	ve 🗟 Save & Close	e 🛞 Close					📲 Logout	🔳 Loç
		Edit	llame *	Service Type	Rating Base *	Base Unit *	Billing Unit *	Billing Base Ratio * De	lete	
	-	E di		Conferencing X	session-time (seconds)				1010	
	- E		Conferencing	Conferencing	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	03		
			Data Service IV/BI	Data Service	auantity (bytec)	hute	kilobyte	1024		
	•		Data Service [KB]	Data Service	quantity (bytes)	byte	mercahida	1048576		
			DiaLun	DiaLun Internet	eassion-time (seconds)	second	minute	1040370		
			Dial-up	Internet Assess	session-unite (seconds)	second	minute	4024		
	- E		internet access	Internet Access	upioad+download (koytes)	KIIUDYLE	megabyte	1024		
			Messaging Service	Messaging Service	quantity (messages)	message	message	1		
			Quantity Based	Quantity Based	quantity (items)	pcs.	pcs.	1		
			Voice Calls	Voice Calls	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	60		
	-		VVI-F1	WI-FI	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	60		
	s s	<u>88</u>		1	Services			America Mancouver	demorant	[2] He
ш (\$	Services			G Millerica/varicouver	demorood	
•	Add 🖻	5	ve 🛛 🚽 Save & Close	e 🕲 Close					NU Logout	Lo
		Edu	Name *	Service Type *	Rating Base *	Base Unit *	Billing Unit *	Billing:Base Ratio * De	lete	
		- 6	Broadband	Internet Acces	session-time (second	megabyte	gigabyte	1024	×	
			Conferencing	Conferencing	session-time (second	5)	minute			
			Data Consiste II/DI	Dote Comice	download (bytes)		hilokuto	1004		
			Data Service (KB)	Data Service	download (kbytes) download (mbytes)		кноруте	1024		
			Data Service (MB)	Data Service	upload (bytes)		megabyte	1048576		
			Dial-up	Dial-up Internet	upload (kbytes)		minute	60		
			Internet access	Internet Access	upload+download (byt)	es)	megabyte	1024		
			Messaging Service	Messaging Service	upload+download (kby	tes) e	message	1		
			Quantity Based	Quantity Based	quantity (items)	pcs.	pcs.	1		
			Voice Calls	Voice Calls	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	60		
			Wi-Fi	Wi-Fi	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	60		
₫	E \$	22 23 24 5a	e 📴 🕨 🛩 🖸 ve 🔒 Save & Close	e 🛞 Close	Services	1		() America/Vancouver	demoroot	P He
		Edit	Name *	Service Type *	Rating Base *	Base Unit *	Billing Unit *	Billing:Base Ratio * D	elete	
				Voice Calls 👻	session-time (seconds)					
			Broadband	Internet Access	upload+download (mbytes)	megabyte	gigabyte	1024	×	
			Conferencing	Conferencing	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	60		
			Data Service (KRI	Data Service	quantity (bytes)	byte	kilobyte	1024		
			Data Service (MB)	Data Service	quantity (bytes)	byte	megabyte	1048576		
			Dial-up	Dial-up Internet	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	60		
			Internet access	Internet Access	upload+download (kbvtes)	kilobyte	megabyte	1024		
			Messaning Service	Messaning Service	quantity (messages)	message	messane	1		
			Quantity Bacad	Quantity Bacad	quantity (iteosayes)	nce	nco	4		
			Voice Colle	Voice Calle	opening (territo)	pes.	minuto	20		
			voice Calls	voice calls	session-lime (seconds)	second	minute	60		
			VVI-F1	WH-F1	session-time (seconds)	second	minute	60		

- 1. In the **Billing** section of Admin-Index, choose Services.
- 2. Click on the 🖸 Add button.
- 3. Fill in the required information:
 - **Name** A short descriptive name for this service (it will be used in the select menus and shown on customer self-care pages).
 - Service Type Select Internet Access.
 - Rating Base If you want to bill customers based on the time they spend on the Internet, select session-time (seconds); if based on the amount of data transferred, select one of the nine options, depending on whether you want to count only uploaded data, only downloaded data, or both. There are also three choices of

measurement units (B, kB and MB). A measurement unit defines the smallest possible unit charged. However, it should not be too small, as it may then be inconvenient to give price information (e.g. if you charge \$0.20 per megabyte, the price of one byte will be \$0.00000019).

- **Base Unit** Change the field value if necessary.
- **Billing Unit** Change the field reading if necessary. This will be shown on statistics screens and on invoices.
- **Billing:Base Ratio** If you changed the previous two fields, also insert a new ratio here.
- 4. Click **Save**.
- 5. Repeat steps 2-4 if you need to create more services.

Create Nodes

This step is only required if you have not entered your NAS into the system before. In this case, you must enter your NAS as a node. PortaBilling requires some key information about your network equipment such as IP address, Node ID, Radius shared secret, etc.



- 1. In the Networking section of the Admin-Index page, choose Nodes.
- 2. In the Node management window, click the **Add** icon.
- 3. Fill in the New Node form:
 - Node Name A short descriptive name for this node (will be used in the select menus).

- Manufacturer Select Cisco.
- **Type** VoIP node type; select **VOIP-GW**.
- Node ID Cisco server host name (recommended hostname.domainname).
- **NAS-IP-Address** IP address of the gateway.
- Auth. Translation rule Leave this empty for now; see the *Translation Rules* section of the PortaBilling Administrator Guide.
- **RTP Proxying** Leave the default selection (**Optimal**); this parameter is applicable only if you use this node for VoIP services.
- **Radius Client** Check this box since this node will be communicating with the billing system.
- **Radius Key** Enter the shared secret here; must be the same as that configured in NAS as a **key** in the radius server configuration.
- Radius Source IP See the Node ID, NAS IP address, and Radius source IP section of the PortaBilling Administrator Guide. Unless your gateway has multiple network interfaces, the value here should be the same as the NAS-IP-Address.
- **POD Server** Make sure to check this box to enable interaction with this server on NAS. The system will send a special command to this server if an account runs out of balance, exceeds its data transfer limit, or expires. The POD server will then terminate the Internet session(s) opened by this account.
- 4. Click Save&Close.
- 5. Repeat steps 2-4 until all of your nodes have been entered.

Create a Tariff

The tariff is a single price list for the use of internet access services. At least two tariffs should be created to provide internet access services successfully:

- A tariff for each account's billing scheme, these tariffs are created as "Applied to: Customer";
- A tariff with the termination costs for each termination partner you have; these tariffs are created as "Applied to: Vendor".

To create the required tariffs, follow the next steps:

6		88 🚯		<u>~</u>			Tariff	Manag	ement					😢 Help
•	🗈 Add	🛞 Close	🕓 Off-	Peak Perio	ds 🔋 xDR	Re-rating						N∏ Lo	gout	目 Log
		_												
		ANTY	Applie	ed To	ANY	Service	v 41	NY	Managed By		Search	Rearch		
		201			2011							Jeardi		
		Rates	1	lame	Curre	ncy Applied	To S	ervice	Managed By	Routing	Description	Delete		
合	III (\$1	19 i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	¶• ↑	~ Q			А	dd Tari	ff		④ America/Van	couver demo	root	[?] Help
••••			a & Close	(X) Close									nout	
-		ag sare	e e close	g close								4.00	gout	Log
					Name	Internet A	cess Pro+	Premium	Currency	0sb - 0s bai	lar 💌			
	- E				Applied to	Customer		× •	Service	Broadband	•			
					Managed By	Administ	rator on	nly 🔽						
				-	General	Into								
				ſ	Default Off-Pea	ak Period	light		~					
	- E			[Destination Gr	oup Set			*					
				F	ree Units	C]						
				F	Post Use Surc	harge (%						
				l	.ogin Fee	C]						
	- 2			0	Connect Fee	C								
	- E			F	Round Charge	d Amount 🛛	××××.×××	XXX	-					
				5	Short Descript	ion								
				(Description	1	hat we	charge	our custom	ers for				
						0	ata tri	ansfer.						
	- 2													
合		.	₽ ♠		Ed	it Tariff	Interr	net Acce	ess Pro+P	remium'	④ America/Val	ncouver demo	root	R Help
•	Save	Save	e & Close	⊗ flose	Downloa	ad 🖪 Liol	ad 🔳	Rates III	Test			► In	tuon	
				0					,			0	,	
			Name	Inter	et Access Pro	+Premium ¹	Curre	nev LISD						
			Applied	To Custo	mer	Triendani	Servic	e Broad	lband					
			Ge	neral Info	Web Upload	& Download	Email L	Upload No	otepad					
			Default (Dff-Peak Pe	riod Night			*						
			Destinat	ion Group 9	Set			*						
			Free Uni	its	0									
			Post Use	e Surcharge	0.00000	%								
			Login Fe	e	0.00000	USD								
			Connect	Fee	0.00000	USD								
			Round C	harged Am	ount xxxxx.x	XXXX	-							
			Short De	scription										
			Descript	ion	What w	we charge	our cu	stomers	for					
					data 1	transfer.								

1. In the Rating section of Admin-Index, choose Tariffs.

- 2. On the Tariff Management page, choose 🖪 Add.
- 3. Fill in the **New Tariff** form:
 - **Name** A short name for the tariff object; this is the name you will then see in the select menus.
 - **Currency** Indicates in which currency pricing information is defined. All pricing information for a single tariff must be defined in the same currency.

NOTE: The currency for the tariff may be chosen only once, and cannot be changed later.

- Applied To Designates whether this tariff will be used to charge your prepaid customers (in this case, choose a **Customer**) or to calculate costs associated with your vendors (in this case, choose a **Vendor**).
- **Managed By** Choose "**Administrator Only**" here (this option is only visible after you select **Applied to: Customer** above).
- Service Choose one of the services you created.
- Default Off-peak Period If you do not differentiate between peak and off-peak rates, just choose Not defined; otherwise, select one of the previously defined off-peak periods. For our Pro example package, we need to set night hours (from 9pm until 8am) as an off-peak period.
- Short Description A short tariff description. This will be shown in the rate lookup on the admin interface and the self-care pages for your accounts and customers.
- **Description** An extended tariff description.
- 4. Click 🖬 Save.
- 5. Repeat steps 1-4 until you have entered all of the tariffs. In our example, we need to create two customer tariffs: one for the **Start** package and another joint one for the **Pro** and **Premium** packages. Also, we need one vendor tariff:

۵	=	\$	88 (i (P		 Q 				Ta	riff Mana	gement		America/\	ancouver (demoroot	2	He
۰.	•	Add	⊗ CI	ose	(<u>)</u> 0	ff-Pe	ak Per	iods	🔋 xDR	Re-rating						M	🖡 Logout		Log
					Арр	lied	То			Service			Managed By		Search	1			
			A	NY				~	ANY		1	ANY		~		Search			
			Rates			Har	ne		Curre	ncy Appli	ed To	Service	Managed By	Routing	Description	Del	lete		
				Inter	net Acc	ess			US	D Ver	ndor	Broadband		No			×		
				Inter	net Acc	ess I	Pro+Pr	emiun	u USI	D Cust	omer	Broadband	Administrator only				×		
				Inter	net Acc	ess	Start		USI	D Cust	omer	Broadband	Administrator only						

Enter Rates

Rates are per-destination prices. Please refer to the *Call Billing Parameters* chapter in the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide** for more information on billing parameters.

Porta 🗹 Switch

₲ 🗉	\$ 88	* * *	~ Q	Rates fo	r tariff 'Intern	et Access	Pro+Prem	ium' 🕓	America/Vancouver	demoroot	🕐 Help
► 🖲	Add 🖬	āave 🛞 Close	🔺 Upload	📕 Tariff						📲 Logout	目 Log
				Effective Fro	m	Destination Prefix	n Group Cou	ntry			
Edit	Rate Codes	* Description	Peak/Off-F	'eak I	Viinimum Threshold * megabyte	Rounding * megabyte	Unit Price Initial * USD/gigabyte	Unit Price Next * USD/gigabyte	Effective From YYYY-MM-DD HH24:MI:55*	a 🗊 🗢 De	lete
			NOT DEFINED	~							
6 🗉	\$::	* : 1	<u> </u>	Rates fo	r tariff 'Intern	et Access	Pro+Premi	um' ©	America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
▶ 🖻	Add 🖬 🧐	iave 🛞 Close	🛃 Upload	📒 Tariff						M Logout	🔒 Log
		1		Effective Fro	m	Destination Prefix	1 Group Cour	itry			
Edit	Rate Codes	* Description	Peak/Off-F	eak ^N	Ainimum Threshold * megabyte	Rounding * megabyte	Unit Price Initial * USD/gigabyte	Unit Price Next * USD/gigabyte	Effective From <u>YYYY-MM-DD</u> HH24:MI:55*	a 🎁 🗢 Del	lete
	NETACCES		Night	~	1	1	20 20	20	immediately		×
* 🗔											-
	Add 🖬 9	ave 🛞 Close	🗠 💟	Rates fo	r tariff 'Intern	et Access	Pro+Premi	um' 0	America/Vancouver	demoroot	2 Help
				Effective Fro	m	Destination Prefix	Group Cour	itry			
Edit Ra	ate Codes *	Description	Peak/Of	f-Peak	Minimum Threshold megabyte	* Rounding * megabyte	Unit Price Initial USD/gigabyte	* Unit Price Next USD/gigabyte	WEFFective From YYYY-MM-DD HH24:MI:55*	a 👸 🖕)elete
			NOT DEFINE								
I NE	ETACCESS	Not Applicable	Peak Off-Peak: Nigh	t	1	1	20.00000 20.00000	20.00000 20.00000	2010-02-01 23:09:16		

- 1. On the Tariff Management page you will see a list of available tariffs. Click the **Rates** icon before the name of the tariff. When you are in Tariff Management for a particular tariff, click on **Rates** in the toolbar.
- 2. In the Edit Rates screen, click Add.
- 3. Fill in the required information:
 - **Rate Codes** A symbolic destination prefix may be entered directly, or you can access the destinations directory by clicking the **Rate Codes** link (in the column header).

NOTE: The NETACCESS rate code you are trying to create a rate for must already exist in Destinations.

- **Minimum Threshold** First billing unit in base units (in our example, megabytes).
- **Rounding** Next billing unit in base units (in our example, megabytes).
- Unit Price Initial Price for first interval per billing unit (in our example, per gigabyte).
- **Unit Price Next** Price for next interval per billing unit (in our example, per gigabyte).
- **Off-peak Minimum Threshold** First billing unit in base units for off-peak time.
- **Off-peak Rounding** Next billing unit in base units for off-peak time.

- **Off-peak Unit Price Initial** Price for first interval per billing unit for off-peak time.
- **Off-peak Unit Price Next** Price for next interval per billing unit.

NOTE: Off-peak fields appear only if an **off-peak period** has been defined for the tariff.

• **Effective From** – If you want this rate to take effect sometime in the future, you can either type in a date manually, or use the calendar (click the DD-MM-YYYY link).

NOTE: When using the calendar, you can specify that the date you are entering is in a different time zone than your present one. PortaBilling will then automatically adjust the time.

- Rate Formula Wizard 🏂 launches the wizard for creating a custom rating formula
- o Hidden, Forbidden or Discontinued flags are optional.
- 4. Click the Save button in the toolbar, or the icon on the left side of the row.
- 5. Repeat steps 1-4 for all your tariffs. In our example, we need to create a 0 price rate for the **Start** package:

۵		\$	88 1		•	~ Q	Rates fo	or tariff 'I	internet Acc	ess Start'	(\$) AI	nerica/\	ancouv	er demoroot	? Help
•	•	Add	🖬 Sa	/e 🤇	🖲 Close	萬 Uploa	d 🖽 Tariff							M Logout	🔒 Log
							Effective From		Destination Prefix	Group Count	ry				
			Edit	Rate	Codes *	Description	Minimum Threshold * megabyte	Rounding * megabyte	Unit Price Initial * USD/gigabyte	Unit Price Next * USD/gigabyte	Effective From <u>YYYY-MM-DD</u> HH24:MI:S5*	4) •	Delete	
				NET	ACCESS		1	1	0	0	immediately			×	

The vendor tariff also needs to contain a 0 price rate:

۵		\$	80	<u>i</u>	1	Z Q	Rates for	tariff 'In	ternet Acces	ss - Vendor	© A	merica/Vancouve	r demoroot	? Help
•	÷	Add	🖬 Sa	we	🛞 Clos	e 🖪 Uploa	ad 🧮 Tariff						📲 Logout	📒 Log
							Effective From		Destination Prefix	Group Count	ry			
			Ed	it <u>Ra</u>	ite Codes	* Description	Minimum Threshold * megabyte	Rounding * megabyte	Unit Price Initial * USD/gigabyte	Unit Price Next * USD/gigabyte	Effective From <u>YYYY-MM-DD</u> HH24:MI:55*	a 👸 🗅 🛛	elete	
				N	ETACCESS		1	1	0	0	immediately		×	

Create Subscriptions

Subscriptions allow you to charge a certain periodic fee to accounts which belong to a certain product. Below we will show you how to create a monthly \$15.00 subscription and apply it to a product with unlimited data transfers. You will also need to create monthly \$30.00 and \$40.00 subscriptions and apply these to the corresponding products.

6 🗉 🕏 🛢	1 🛉 📪 Þ	🛩 🖸	Add Subscription Plan		demoroot	🕐 Hel
🖬 Save 🖡	🖬 Save & Close	🛞 Close			💵 Logout	
	Name Managed By General J	Internet Arress : Administertor	art Currency USD - US Dollar	×		
	Invoice Line De	escription	128 & 512 kbps for \$15		_	
	Subscription Is	Activated	At the given start date			
	Activation Fee		USD			
	Minimum Subs	cription Period	Months			
	Early Cancellat	ion Penalty	USD			
	Subscription C	harges Applied	At the end of the billing period 💙			
	Periods In Adv	ance				
	Round Charge	d Amount	XXXXX.XX000			
			transfer for \$15			
å ≣ \$ 8	4 -	~ Q	Add Subscription Plan	③ America/Vancouver	demoroot	? He
🕨 🖻 Add	Save 🗟 Sav	e & Close 🛛 🛞 Cl	se		り Logout	
	Name Managed By General J	Internet Access & Administrator	art Currency USD - US Dollar only y	V		
	Edit Up/Down	Default/promoti	nal Monthly Billing Bi-weekly Billing Weekly	Billing Daily Billing Delet	e	
		Default Rate	unlimited 15,00000 unlimited 7,50000 unlimited	3.50000 unlimited 0.50000		

- 1. In the **Rating** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Subscription Plans**.
- 2. On the Subscription Plan Management page, click the 🖪 Add icon.
- 3. Fill in the "Add Subscription Plan" form:
 - **Product name** The product object name.
 - **Currency** The product currency.
 - Managed by Choose Administrator only.

General Info tab

• **Invoice Line Description** – The description to appear on the invoice sent to the customer.

Periodic Fees tab

- Click the **Edit icon** and enter the rates for periodic billing. PortaBilling will auto-fill the form after the rate for monthly billing has been entered. You can edit rates or add new rates for the same subscription.
- o Click **Save**.
- 4. Repeat the above procedure for all your subscriptions:

₼		\$	00	ł	}•	•	~	Q		Subscrip	tion Pla	an Management		(1) America/Vanco	uver o	demoroot	R H	elp
•	•	Add	8	Close											М	🖡 Logout		.og
										Managed By	/	Search						
				A Currence					1	NY .	~	Se	arch					
						Ham	Ð		Currency	Managed By		Descri	iption		Delete			
				Interr	iet Aci	Name Currency cess Premium USD				Administrator only	256 kbps u	ipload, 1 Mbps download a	and 10 GB for \$40		×			
				Interr	net Aci	cess	Pro		USD	Administrator only	512 kbps u	pload, 2 Mbps download,	peak 5 GB and nij	pht 20 GB for \$30	×			
				Interr	net Aci	cess	Start		USD	Administrator only	128 kbps u	upload, 512 kbps download	d, unlimited data t	ansfer for \$15	×			

Create a Destination Group Set

In order to define discounts for your Internet service, you need to create a destination group set.

- 1. In the **Rating** section of the admin interface, choose **Destination Group Sets**.
- 2. On the Destination Group Sets Management page, choose 🖸 Add.

	Destination Group Sets	() America/Vancouver demoroot [?] H	telp
► 🖻 Add 🝙 Save 🝙 Save & Close 🛞 Close		🕅 Logout 📑 L	Log
•	Edit Name* Delete		
	SmartCall		
	X-Telecom		
\mathbf{V}			
	Destination Group Sets	America/Vancouver demoroot H	telp
Add Save Save & Close & Close		▶¶ Logout 📑 L	Log
		I	
	Edit Name* Delete		
	Internet Access		
	SmartCall		
	<u>.</u>		
	Destination Group Sets		telp
🕨 🗄 Add 🖬 Save 🗟 Save & Close 🛞 Close		▶町 Logout 📒 L	Log
	Ean name* Delete		
	Internet Access		
	SmartCall		
	X-Telecom		

- 3. Type in the name of the new destination group set.
- 4. Click the **Save** button in the toolbar or the **i** icon on the left end of the row.

Define a Destination Group

Now you need to create one destination group.

- 1. In the **Rating** section of the admin interface, choose **Destination Group Sets**.
- 2. On the Destination Group Sets page, click on the destination group set name to enter the Edit screen.
- 3. Click Add to add a new destination group.

₫	Ⅲ \$	8 🛉 🗄	9 🌬 🔍		Destination Group Set	s	America/Vancouver	r demoroot	🛛 Help
•	🗈 Add	🖬 Save	🚽 Save & Close	⑧ Close				📲 Logout	目 Log
				Edit	t Name *	Delete			
				_					
					Internet Access				
					V				
ക		88 🛉	e 🏚 🖌 🖸	Edit Destin	ation Group Set 'Inte	rnet Access'	America/Vancouver		
•	🗈 Add	🖬 Save	🖬 Save & Close	e 🛞 Close 🗷 D	Download 🛃 Upload			💵 Logout	目 Log
				Edit De	estination Group Name * Prefixe	efix s Delete			
~		Q 1		Edit Dectio	ation Group Set 'Inte	rnat Accase!		demorpot	2 Halp
•	Add	Save	🖬 Save & Close	e 🛞 Close 🔳 C	Download 🖲 Upload	met Access	C America/Varicouver	N Logout	Log
				Edit De	Search Name Pr Destination Group Name * Prefixe	efix s Delete			

4. Type in the destination group name, then click the **Save** button in the toolbar or the **i** icon on the left end of the row.

Assign Prefix to Destination Group

1. When in edit mode for a destination group set, click on the name of the destination group to see its details.

₼	III \$	88 🛉	10 Þ 🛩 🔍	Edit Des	stination G	iroup Set	'Internet Access'	() America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🔁 Add	🖬 Save	🗟 Save & Close	🛞 Close	👿 Download	萬 Upload			🕅 Logout	目 Log
				Ed	it Destination	Search Nam Group Hame *	e Prefix Prefixes Delete			
					*					
ຝ	II \$	88 🖡	2 1 I Z	Edit D	estination	Group 'I	nternet Access'	③ America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🔁 Add	🛞 Close							M Logout	目 Log
		•	Pr	efix Coun	try Descripti	on 🕨 A B	CDEFGHIJKLMN	DPQRSTU¥WX	ΥZ	
			Prefix		Country		Description	Delete		
	V									

2. Click 🖿 Add to enter "add prefixes" mode.

₼		\$	80	ł	0:0	Þ	~	Q	Add Destinations to Group 'Internet Access'	demoroot	🛛 Help
•	🖬 Sa	ave	8	Close						📲 Logout	
									NETACCESS Perfix Country Description		
									Prefix Country Description		

3. To display the NETACCESS prefix, type it in and press the **Prefix** search button.

₫		\$	<u></u>	ł	80	ا 📢	~	Q	Add Destinati	ions to G	iroup "	Internet Acc	ess'	America	/Vancouver	demoroot	🛛 Help
•		Save	8	Close												🕅 Logout	
							► [NETA	Select all Prefix	Country Count S Not Applic	Descr V able Sym	iption Select all fo Description bolic, for internet ac	ound de cess	stinations			
		Y															
ຝ		\$	00	•	0	Þ	~	Q	Edit Destina	tion Gro	up 'Ini	ternet Acces	s'			demoroot	🛛 Help
•	•	٩dd	8 (lose												り Logout	📒 Log
			•					P	efix Country D	escription	ABC	DEFGHIJKL	. M N () P Q R S T	UVWX	ΥZ	
						Pr	efix		Country			Description		Del	ete		
					1	NETAC	CCE	88	Not Applicable		Symbolic,	for internet access		3	K		

4. Select the prefix and then press the **Save** button.

Create a Volume Discount Plan

A volume discount plan contains definitions of all the applicable special discounts offered to users of a certain product.

- 1. In the **Rating** section of the admin interface, choose **Volume Discount Plans**.
- 2. On the Discount Plan Management page, choose 🗄 Add.

₫		00	•	:• î>		Q	Disco	unt Plan I	Management				demoroot		Help
•	🔁 Add	۲	Close										💵 Logout		Log
						AN	Managed I Y	ly	Search	Search)				
	- 1			Nam	e	Currency	Managed By		Descri	ption		Delete			
			<u>Easy</u> Easy	<u>:Call</u> :Call - S	Standard	USD	Administrator only Administrator only	200 free min	utes to US and Cana	da + discour	nt on calls to Europe	×			
6			•	Þ	2 Q			Add Disco	unt Plan		() America/V	ancouver	demoroot	2	Help
•	🖌 Save		iave & (lose	🛞 Clos	e							N Logout		
					Plan N Manag	lame Pro Jed By Adu General Info	Discount ministrator only	~	Currency USD - T	JS Dollar	•				
					Destir	ation Group	o Set 1	nternet Acce	ss	*					
					Count	er Reset		nce in billi	ng period	*					
					Destin	iation Group	o Lookup Type (((Same Destir By Prefix Of F By Full Ratin 	nation As Rate Rate Destination g Pattern Match						
					Descr	iption	r	GB in peal ight time	k and 20 GB in						

- 3. Fill in the Add Discount Plan form:
 - Plan Name A short descriptive name for this discount plan.
 - **Currency** Indicates in which currency pricing information is defined; a volume discount plan can only apply to accounts and customers with the same currency.

NOTE: The currency for the discount plan may be chosen only once (at creation) and cannot be changed later.

- Managed by If you want this discount plan to be used for your reseller's accounts, so that the reseller himself can change the parameters of this tariff and create new accounts using this product, choose a customer name from the menu. Otherwise, choose Administrator only here.
- **Destination Group Set** The destination group set which will be used to select the definitions of individual destination groups. Choose the destination group set you created in the previous steps.
- **Counter Reset** Select the default option **Once in billing period**, meaning that in every billing period the counters are set to zero and the process starts all over again, e.g. every month the customer is entitled to 500 free MB.
- **Description** An extended discount description.
- 4. Click 🖬 Save.

Define Discounts within Volume Discount Plan

- 1. While in the Edit Discount Plan form, click on the Discounts tab.
- 2. Press 🖸 Add to add a new discount.

۵	≣ \$	88 🛉	8 0	Þ ~ Q		Edi	t Discount Plan '	Pro Dis	count'	() America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🗈 Add	🖬 Save	. 🖬 :	ave & Close	🛞 Close						🔰 Logout	目 Log
	Plan Man	Name Pi aged By Ac General Ir	ro Disco Iministra I fo Di e	unt ator only scounts	*	Curre	ncy USD					-
	Edit	Destination	n Group	*	Service *		Type *		Peak Level	Discount Scheme 잘 Exclus	ive Delete	
				Voice C:	alls	\vee	Amount, USD	~				
	V											

- 3. Enter the initial information about this discount:
 - **Destination Group** Type in the name of the destination group you have created (**Internet Access** in our example).

= \$	88 🚯	9 🕨 🗹 🔍		Edit Discou	int Plan 'Pro i	Discount'	③ America/Vancouver	demoroot	🕑 Help
🔁 Add	🖬 Save	🖃 Save & Close	🛞 Close					🕅 Logout	目 Log
Plan I Mana	Name Pro ged By Adm	Discount hinistrator only		Currency USD					
	General Info				~ .				
Edit	Destination	Group *	Service *		Type "	Peak Level	Discount Scheme Z Exclusi	ve Delete	
	Edit	S Add Add Add Add Add Add Add Add	E S S F Pro Orizount Plan Name Pro Dizcount Managed By Administrator only General Info Discounts Edit Destination Group *	E S Image: First State Image: Source State <td>E S S P C Edit Discout C Add Save Save & Close Sove Currency USD Managed By Administrator only </td> <td>Edit Discount Plan 'Pro Add Save & Close Plan Name Pro Discount General Info Discounts Edit Destination Group * Service *</td> <td>Image: Image: Image:</td> <td>Image: The set of the se</td> <td>Image: The set of the se</td>	E S S P C Edit Discout C Add Save Save & Close Sove Currency USD Managed By Administrator only	Edit Discount Plan 'Pro Add Save & Close Plan Name Pro Discount General Info Discounts Edit Destination Group * Service *	Image:	Image: The set of the se	Image: The set of the se

- Service Select the service you previously defined.
- **Type** If the discount levels are to be based on the total amount of transferred data, choose **Volume, gigabytes** (your billing unit will be displayed in this field). Otherwise, choose **Amount, USD** to use cost-based discount levels. For more details about different discount level options, see the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide**.
- **Discount Scheme** Click the **2** icon in the toolbar to invoke the discount definition wizard. There are three tabs where you can define three different discounts for the peak, off-peak, and second off-peak periods:



- 1. Define the applicable discount levels for the peak period:
- Click Add to add a new discount level threshold.

• In the **Threshold** column, enter the threshold value. For our **Pro** package, we need to add a 5 GB threshold.

				Dis	count Wiza	rd		
•	🗈 Add	🗟 Save	e 🗟 Save & Close	🛞 Close				
		Peak	Period Off-Peak Pe	eriod 2nd C)ff-Peak Period			
	_							
	E	dit	Threshold, gigabyte	*	Discount, % *	Notification	Service Restriction	Delete
			U	nlimited			No Restriction 💙	
		=	5		100	Yes	No Restriction	×

- In the Discount column, enter the actual value of the discount (use 100 to specify free data transfer). Do not put a % sign after the number, as this will be appended automatically.
- Check the **Notification** box if you want an e-mail to be sent to the customer or account subscriber when a threshold is crossed. If no e-mail is specified for the subscriber, notification will be sent to the customer to whom the subscriber belongs.
- Using the Service Restriction drop-down box, you can restrict bandwidth for the data transfer before this threshold is reached. For the Pro package, we select No Restriction. The Limit Usage option changes the bandwidth to an extremely low value (exactly defined in porta-admin.conf), but the customer can still access the Internet to check his bill, make a payment, etc. The Block Usage option blocks service when this threshold is crossed. Click on the i icon at the left end of the row to complete definition of this discount level. Repeat the steps above to define more discount levels.
- 2. Click on the **Off-Peak Period** tab and define the applicable discount levels for weekends. First, you need to uncheck the box reading **Use the same discount scheme as for the peak period**. The rest of the procedure is the same as for the peak period discount:

					Dise	count Wiza	rd		
Þ	🔁 Add	🖬 Save	🗟 Save & Clos	e 🛞 C	lose				
		Peak Pe	eriod Off-Peak	Period	2nd O	ff-Peak Period			
		Use the s	ame discount sch	neme as f	or the	peak period			
	E	dit TI	hreshold, gigabyt	e*		Discount, % *	Notification	Service Restriction	Delete
				Unlimited	1			No Restriction 💟	
		=	20			100	Yes	No Restriction	×

3. Click Save&Close in the toolbar in order to return to the Discount Plan screen. You will see that the Discount Scheme column is now populated with the discount definition:



Exclusive – Defines whether an account should be granted exclusive free data transfer, i.e. data transfer to which a 100% discount is applied (and which does not affect the customer's counters). See the PortaBilling Administrator Guide for more details.

For the **Premium** package, define 10 and 12 GB peak thresholds. Limit usage for customers after their data transfer reaches 10 GB. Block usage after 12 GB (to prevent service abuse):

						Discount Wiza	rd			? Help
•	🔁 Add		Save 🖬 Sa	ve & Close	🛞 Close	e				
			Peak Period	Off-Peak	Period	2nd Off-Peak Period				
		Edit	Thre	shold, USD *		Discount, % *	Notification	Service Restriction	Delete	
					Unlimited			No Restriction 💙		
				10		100	No	No Restriction	×	
				12		100	No	Limit Usage	×	
			ι	Inlimited				Block Usage	×	

4. Click the Save button in the toolbar or the icon on the left end of the row to save this discount scheme. It will be displayed on the Edit Discount Plan page:

		III \$		i	•:• •	Þ	~	Q	Ed	lit Di	scount F	Plan	'Pro I	Disco	unt'				ouver	dem	oroot [
	Þ.	🗈 Ado	i 🖬	Save		Save	& Cle	ose	8	Close										M) L	ogout		log
F	Plan M Mana	Name ged By A General I	Pro Di Idmin nfo	scount istrator Discou	only Ints			*		Curre	ncy USD												
E	dit	Destinati	on Gr	oup *		\$	Servi	ice *				Туре	*		Р	eak L	.evel		Disco Schen	ount ne 🏏	Exclusive	De	lete
					Voic	e Cal	ls			~	Amount, 1	USD		\sim				[
۱	= 1	nternet Ac	cess	I	3road	band					Volume, giç	jabyte			Off-Pea	Pea k, 2n	ak d Off-Pi	eak I	05 - 1 020 -	00% 100%			×

Create a Product

An account for accessing your Internet services will be issued for a specific product. Products are a powerful feature that defines different ways to bill an account. Product definition is always done in two steps: product definition and creation of an accessibility list. In our case, we need to create three products: **Start** with 128 upload and 512 kbps download bandwidth (unlimited data transfer), **Pro** with 512 kbps upload and 2 Mbps download (above-limit data transfer is charged), and **Premium** with 256 kbps upload and 1Mbps download (capped data transfer).

奋	II \$		Ť	0 :0	Þ	~ Q		Prod	uct Manage	ment		Americ	a/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🗈 Add	8	Close											N Logout	目 Log
								Managed By		Search					
							ANY		~	Search					
							\$?	Name 0	Currency Mana	iged By Description	on Delete				
6		\$	88	Ť	80	₽	~ Q	1	Add Produ	ict	•	America/Vano	couver	demoroot	? Help
•		iave	8	Clos	e	<u> </u>		-	luurrout				∢	l Logout	
				2105	-									/ Logoat	
		Prod	uct N	ame	Inte	ernet A	.ccess Start	×	Currency U	SD - US Dollam			*		
		Man	aged	By	Adı	ninist	rator only	у 💙							
		 [-												
	- 5		Gene	eral I	nro	Main	tenance Fee								
		Brea	kage												
		Over	draft F	Prote	ction	De	bit accour	nts only 🛛 💙	*						
		Acco	unt D	efaul	t ACL	Ac	count seli	f-care 💌	•						
		Defa	ult Di	scou	nt Pla	n No	ne	~	*						
		Info I	JRL			htt	p://product.	local.com							
		Desi	riptio	n		In	ternet A	ccess		7					
	- 1														
۵		\$	88	<u>†</u>	: •	<u>م</u>		dit Product	'Internet	Access Sta	rt' 🕓	America/Van	couver	demoroot	? Help
•	🔁 A	dd	a 5	ave		Save 8	Close 🛞	Close 🔯 Rate	e Lookup 🔋	Clone			M	🖡 Logout	目 Log
									·	·					
			Produ	ict Na	ame	Intern	et Access Sta	rt *	Currency	JSD					
			Mana	ged E	Зу.	Admini	strator only								
				Gene	ral Ir	ifo M	laintenance	Online Signup	Accessibility	Subscriptions	Service	Features	Notepad		
		F	Please	e defi	ne at	least o	ne accessibi	lity entry	_						

- 1. In the Rating section of the Admin-Index page, choose Products.
- 2. On the Product management page, click the 🖪 Add icon.
- 3. Fill in the "Add product" form:
 - **Product name** product object name.
 - **Currency** product currency; only tariffs which have the same currency will be permitted in the accessibility list.
 - Managed by If you want this product to be used for your reseller's accounts, so the reseller himself can change the parameters of this tariff and create new accounts using this

product, choose a customer name from the menu. Otherwise, choose **Administrator only** here.

General Info tab

- **Breakage** Leftover balance which is considered "useless" (for statistical purposes). Accounts with a balance below breakage will be counted as *depleted*. This does not affect account authentication or authorization, so the account can still access wireless services if there is enough money left to cover at least the first interval.
- Account Default ACL The access level assigned by default to new accounts created with this product. The ACL determines which operations may be performed by accounts on the self-care pages. The default value is "Account self-care" (pre-defined ACL), which allows all possible operations.
- Default Discount Plan If no discount applies to your product, select None. In our example, select this option for the Start package. For the other two packages, we need to select the corresponding discount plans:

ቆ			88	ł	8 :0	^₽	~	Q		Edi	it Proe	luct	: 'In	iter	net /	Acces	ss Pro							?	
۲		Save		Save	e & C	lose	8	Close	Ø	Ra	te Looku	p) Cla	one								Þ	🛛 Logout		L
			Pro Mai	duct nage	Nan d By	ne Ir Ac	ntern İmini	et Acc strato	ess P only	ro		*	Cı	irrene	y US	D									
				Ge	enera	l Infa		lainte	nance	e ()nline Siç	nup	Acc	essib	lity	Subsci	riptions	Servi	ice Featu	res	Notepa	d	_		
			Bre	akaç	je							U	SD												
			Ove	erdra	ft Pro	tectio	n	Debi	t ac	cou	nts only	7	~												
			Acc	ount	Defa	ult A	CL	Acco	unt	sel	-care		*												
			Def	fault	Disco	ount F	Plan	Pro	Disc	ount			~												
	-		Info	URI	L																				
			Des	scrip	tion			512 down GB 1	kbp 10a !or	s u d, 3 30	pload, peak 5	2 MD GB a:	bps nd r	night	20										

- Info URL If you have an external server with a description of product features, enter the URL here (e.g. http://www.myproduct.com). Your customers will be able to go there from their self-care page.
- **Description** your comments about the intended use of this product.

Maintenance tab

The **Maintenance Fees** functionality has been replaced by the Subscriptions module. Please use subscription plans to apply periodic charges for the broadband service to your customers.

- 4. Click 🖬 Save.
- 5. Click on the Accessibility tab to edit this product's accessibility.

Enter Node and Tariff into Product's Accessibility List

The accessibility list has two functions: it defines permitted access points (nodes and access numbers) and specifies which tariff should be used for billing in each of these points.

6	2		\$	88	Ť	.	^ (1)	1 0	Edi 🛛	t Produci	t 'Inter	net /	ccess Sta	art' 🕔 America	/Vancouver		? Help
•	•	🔁 A	18		Save		Save &	Close	e 🛞 Ci	ose 🔯 Rat	e Lookup	l C	one			🕅 Logout	目 Log
			,	Proc Man	luct Na aged E	ame 3y	Intern Admini	et Acc strato	ess Start r only	×	Curre	ncy US	D				
			Ξ.		Gene	eral Ir	nfo M	lainte	nance	Online Signup	Access	ibility	Subscription	s Service Featur	es Notepa	d	
			P	lea:	se defi	ne at	least o	ne ac	cessibility	entry							
ŵ	ł		88		•	î >	~	Q	Add A	ccessibilit	y to Pr	oduci	'Internet	Access Start		a/Vancouver	demoroot
•		🚽 Sav	e	3 5	ave & (lose	8 C	ose									▶¶ Logout
	Product USD Service Upload+Download 109																
				Se	rvice		E	Uploa	d+Downlo	ad MB	*						
	Service Upload+Download HB Node Demo Cisco																
				Au Ta	thorize riff *	ition C	hunk	Inter	net Acce	USD ss Start	~						
					J												
ŵ		II \$			F 🗗	Þ	~	Q,	Ec	lit Produc	t 'Inter	net A	ccess Star	t' 🕓 Ame			
►		🔁 Ado		Sa	ve	3 Sav	/e & Clo	se	🛞 Close	🔯 Rate Looi	kup 🛅 (lone				▶¶ Logout	目 Log
					Produc	rt Nan	ne Inte	rnet 4	Access Stai	t	Curre	ncy ∪S	D				
					Manag	ed By	Adm	inistra	ator only								
				_	G	ienera	al Info	Main	tenance	Online Signup	Access	ibility	Subscriptions	Service Features	Notepad	_	
					Uploa	d+Dov	wnload	мв									
					Edit		No	de		Access Cod	e In	fo Digits		Tariff	Delete		
							<u>Demo</u>	Cisco	2	N/A		N/A	Inte	ernet Access Start	×		

- 1. When the Accessibility tab is selected, click on the 🖪 Add icon.
- 2. Choose the service you created in the Service select menu.
- 3. In the Accessibility dialog box, select the Cisco node and choose the appropriate tariff which applies to your customers when they use Internet service.
- 4. Click **Save** to save this accessibility entry.

Subscriptions tab







- Click the Add icon to add a subscription to the selected product.
- Click the **Reapply Subscription** button when adding/changing a subscription to apply the new settings to all accounts using this product.

Service Features tab

۵	II \$	00	ł	20	Þ	\sim	Q		E	lit Produc	t 'Internet	Access Star	t' (₿ America/V	ancouver	demoroot	2 H	elp
•	🗟 Save		Sav	ve & Cl	ose	۲	Close	2	Rate Looku	o 🗎 Clone						🕅 Logout		.og
				P N	roduc Ianag	ct Na Jed B	me In y Ad	terne minis	et Access Sta strator only	rt	* Currency ∪	SD						
					G	iene	ral Info	м	laintenance	Online Signu	p Accessibility	Subscriptions	Service Features	Notepad				
				S L	ervic	e Tyj <u>et Ac</u>)e <u>cess</u>		Ma Ma	Limit Bandwid (Upload Rate ' (Download Ra	h Day128Niç No Limit Day128Niç Day128Niç Day128Niç Custom	ht128 v ht512 v ht1024 ht-1024K ht512						

- Limit Bandwidth Check this box if your Internet access package offers limited bandwidth. If this box is selected, the two fields below become active.
- Max Upload Rate There are several options in this drop-down box:
 - No Limit Select this option if you want to limit only the download rate.
 - **Custom** Define the required value and a measurement unit in the two smaller boxes.
 - This drop-down box can also contain other predefined bandwidth limits that are set in porta-admin.conf (see note below). These allow you to set different bandwidths for different times of day.
- Max Download Rate There are several options in this dropdown box:
 - **No Limit** Select this option if you want to limit only the upload rate.
 - **Custom** Define the required value and a measurement unit in the two smaller boxes.
 - This drop-down box can also contain other predefined bandwidth limits that are set in porta-admin.conf (see note below). These allow you to set different bandwidths for different times of day.

For the **Start** package, we selected predefined bandwidths. Below is an example of the **Service Features** tab with the custom bandwidth values used for our **Pro** package:

₫		\$	00 200	ł	.	f ə	~	Q		Ec	lit Pro	du	ct ']	Internet	Access St	art:	🕚 AI				?	
•	🔙 Sa	ave		Save	& Clo	se	8 C	lose	0	Rate	Lookup	Ē	Clon	ie						🕅 Logout		Log
				Pro Mar	duct N naged	łame By	Int Adr	ernet ninistr	Acces ator o	ss Stai only	rt			Currency U	ISD						-	
					Gen	eral	Info	Mai	ntena	ance	Online	Sign	up	Accessibility	Subscriptio	ns	Service Feature	Notep	ad			
				Ser Inte	vice T rnet A	ype Acce:	<u>ss</u>			☑ Max Max	Limit Ba (Upload (Downlo	ndwi Rate ad R	dth * ate *	Custom Custom	· 	*	512	kbps 💙 Mbps 💙		_		

For the **Premium** package, we can either define custom bandwidth values or use predefined ones.

The Cisco administrator should configure policy classes to include the time-based ACL and applicable bandwidth limits. Then the names of the policies need to be defined in the [ServiceFeatures] section of porta-admin.conf as comma-separated values, for example:

```
[ServiceFeatures]
InternetUploadPolicies = Day128Night128, Day256Night1024
InternetDownloadPolicies = Day512Night512, Day256Night1024
```

5. Repeat this procedure for all products.

奋		\$	00 00	ł	80	A	~	Q		Prod	uct Managemer	it	America/Vancouver	demoroot	?	Help
•	•	Add	8	Close										🕅 Logout		Log
										Managed By	Searc	h				
									ANY		Internet Access	Search				
		\$?		Nar	ne		C	urrency	Managed By		Descr	iption	Delete		
		5	3 Int	ernet	Acce	ess Pi	remiu	Im	USD	Administrator only	256 kbps uplo	nd, 1 Mbps d	ownload and 10 GB for \$40	×		
		5	3 <u>In</u> t	ernet	Acce:	ss Pro	2		USD	Administrator only	512 kbps upload, 2 Mb	ps download	l, peak 5GB and night 20 GB for \$	30 💌		
		1	3 <u>In</u>	ernet	Acce:	ss Sta	<u>irt</u>		USD	Administrator only	128 kbps upload, 512	kbps downlo	oad, unlimited data transfer for \$1	5 🗙		

Create a Vendor

This step is only required if you have not entered vendor information into the system before.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. On the Vendor Management page, click Add.

Porta **Switch**

۵	III \$	80	1 10 1	. ~	Q		Add Vendor	(B America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	📕 Save	e 🖬	Save & Close	8	Close					🕅 Logout	
		Vendo	or Name Inte	rnet A	Access Vendo	r	Currency Opening Balance	USD - US Dollar	×	×	
			Address Info	Add	litional Info	User Interface					
		Comp	any Name				Contact				
		Mr./Ms	s.t]	Phone				
		First№	lame			M.I.	Fax				
		Last N	lame]	Alt. Phone				
		Addre	ss				Alt. Contact				
							E-mail				
							Description				
		Provin	ice/State								
		Posta	I Code								
		City									
		Count	try/Region								

3. Fill in the **Add Vendor** form. Since this symbolic vendor is created only so that the system will function properly, there is no need to fill in all the fields on the three available tabs. You need only type in a vendor name and select a currency.

Main form (top)

- Vendor Name short name for the Vendor object; this will be used on the web interface.
- Currency the currency in which this vendor charges you.
- **Opening balance** starting balance for the vendor; the default is zero.
- 4. Click Save&Close.

Define a Connection

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. Click on the **Connections** icon next to the vendor name.

۵		\$	00	÷	0:0	€	~	Q	Vendor N	lanage	ment				demoroot	? Help
•	٠	Add	۲	Close											🔰 Logout	📒 Log
									S	earch						
											Bearch					
						x	DRs	Name	Connections	Currency	Balance	F.mail	Delete			
						[DID Supplier	27 2	USD	0.00000	2.114	Donote	1		
						- 1	2	DID Oupplier	<u>xx</u> =	0.50	0.00000					
						l	<u> </u>	<u>Begemot</u>	🔀 <u>3</u>	USD	0.00000					
						[<u> </u>	GlobaNet	🔀 2	USD	0.08580					
						[<u> </u>	Internet Access Vendor	• 0	USD	0.00000		×			
									V							



ቆ	II \$ 23 🛉 🗗 Þ 🛩 C	Add Connection For 'Internet Access Vendor' Vendor 🕚 America/Vancouver	demoroot	? Help
•	🖬 Save 📓 Save & Close 🛞 Clo	se	🕅 Logout	📒 Log
	Descrip Service Ger	ion Internet Access * Type Default * *		
	Node Port Tariff Capacity	Demo Cisco V · Internet Access - Vendor V · 1000 ·		

- 3. Press **Add** to add a new connection.
- 4. Fill in the connection information:
 - **Description** This field is mandatory.
 - Service Type Select Internet Access.
 - **Node** Choose the Cisco gateway which you previously added as a node.
 - Tariff Choose the vendor tariff.
- 5. **Capacity** The maximum number of sessions the router can handle. Click **Save**.

Create a Customer

A customer is an owner of accounts. The customer's contact information is used to distribute account usage information, internet access statistics, invoices, and so on. Usually, you will need to create at least one customer for each broadband user.

6	II \$ 88 🛔		Q	A	dd Custom	ier	Q	America/Vancouver	demoroot	P Help
•	🖬 Save 📓 Sa	ve & Close 🛛 🛞 C	lose						📲 Logout	
	Customer Name Blocked Type	Internet Access	*	Currency Opening Balance Customer Class	USD - US D 0 Default cu	ollar '	•			
	Address Info	User Interface	Dialing Rules	Additional Info	Payment Info	Service Features	Custom Fields]		
	Company Name [MrJMsJ First Name [Last Name [Contact [Phone [Fax [Alt. Phone]						
	Address			Alt. Contact						
	Province/State			Description						
	City Country/Region	1								

- 1. In the **Participants** section of Admin-Index page, choose **Customers**.
- 2. On the Customer Management page, choose Add Customer (In this example, we assume that you are creating the customer manually, so choose **Manually** from the drop-down menu (do not use any of the Quick Form options)).

3. Fill in the **New Customer** form. Please note that there are several tabs with extra information available on the screen. The most important fields are:

Main form (top)

- **Name** short name for the customer object; this will be used on the web interface.
- **Currency** the currency in which this customer will be billed.
- **Opening balance** a starting balance for the customer; the default is zero.
- **Type** Normally, most of your customers would be retail customers.
- Customer Class Choose Default.

Address info tab

- **Email** An email address for the distribution of accounting information. After the billing period is over, a list of xDRs and other statistics will be sent to this address.
- **Bcc** Delivery to the specified email address of your account representative a copy of every outgoing email sent to the customer; this may be used for debug and archiving purposes.

Additional info tab

- **Billing period** Frequency of distribution of accounting information. For more details about different available billing periods, see the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide**.
- Send Statistics Summary only Distribute an event summary only, and do not attach a details file. Other options are full statistics (attach a complete list of xDRs) or do not send (no not deliver event statistics to this customer via email at all).

Payment info tab

• **Credit limit** – if left empty, then there is no credit limit for this customer.

User Interface tab

- Time zone the time zone in which the customer will see his xDRs and also that defines his billing period. For example, if you choose America/New_York here and the billing period is Monthly, this means the billing period will start on the first day of the month at 00:00 New York time.
- Web Interface Language language to be used on the customer self-care web interface.

Create Accounts

1. Go to the **Customers** screen (the one containing the list of customers). It should resemble the screenshot below.

▶ 🗄 Add ⊗ Close ▶ D Log		
	it 目 Log	N Logout
Type Representative Search Advanced		
Direct Customers 🖌 ANY 💌 Search Search		
xDRs Hame Accounts Currency Credit Limit Balance E-mail Status Delete		
Aardvoip USD 0.00000 💌		
Ascard Telecom 🗊 USD 0.00000 0.00000		
Bandtel CT USD 0.00000		
EasyCall Ltd TSD 0.47000 c@aard		
P I <u>PTV Customer</u>		
D Internet Access USD 0.00000		
V		
📅 🗉 🖻 🗟 🔁 🖻 🗹 🙆 🛛 Accounts of Retail Customer 'Inernet Access' 🕓 America/Vancouver demore		demoroot
▶ 🗄 Add 🔮 Account Generator 🕺 Close 🕅 🕅 Log	ut	💵 Logout
Account ID Batch Ctrl # SIP Status Advanced		
ANY Show Accounts Search		
A II & M A M A COOLET ACCOUNT for Detail Customer 'Instruct Access' D Americal Access'	2 Hala	demorrant
		Gemorooc
Image: Save & Llose VS Llose P1	ıt	NU Logout
AccountID 983124578 Product USD - Internet Access Star		
Blocked Opening Balance o		
Account Info User Interface Subscriber Additional Info Life Cycle Service Features Custom Fields		
Type O Debit O Credit O Voucher		
Type O Debit O Credit O Voucher Credit Limit		
Type Debit O Credit O Voucher Credit Limit Service Password Auto		
Type Debit © Credit O Voucher Credit Limit Service Password Auto		
Type Debit O Credit Voucher Credit Limit Service Password Lauto		
Type ① Debit ③ Credit ① Voucher Credit Limit □ □ □ □ □		
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit		
Type Debit © Credit C Voucher Credit Limit Image: Credit C Credit C Coucher Service Password Image: Credit C Credit C Coucher F-mail Image: Credit C Credit C Coucher Batch Broadband None		
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit	t 🛛 Help	demoroot
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit	t 🤇 Help ut	demoroot ቅቺ Lagout
Type Debit © Credit Uoucher Credit Limit	t 2 Help ut	demoroot Þtj Logout
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit	t 🛛 Help ut	demoroot ÞØ Logout
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit	t ? Help ut	demoroot भेरी Logout
Type ○ Debit O Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit Service Passwort E-mail Batch Broadband None Image: Service Passwort Image: Service Passwort </th <th>t P Help ut</th> <th>demoroot ÞØ Logout</th>	t P Help ut	demoroot ÞØ Logout
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit	t [?] Help ut	demoraat Þtfj Lagaut
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit Service Password Auto E-mail Batch Broadband None	t 2 Help ut	demoroot ÞØ Logout
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit Service Password Auto E-mail Batch Broadband None	t 🛛 🗹 Help ut	demoraat भग्नि Logout
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit	t 2 Help ut	demoroot - 머테 Logout
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit	t [2] Help ut	demoroot Þ¶ Logout
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit	t / Help ut	demoroot ÞØ Logout
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit Service Password E-mail Batch Broadband None Image: Service Construction Image: Servi	t 🛛 Help ut	demoroot Þtj Logout
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit Service Password E-mail Batch Broadband None	t 2 Help ut	demoroot Þtj Logout
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit Service Password Auto E-mail Batch Broadband None	t [2] Help ut	demoroot Þ¶ Logout
Type Debit © Credit Voucher Credit Limit Bervice Password E-mail Bath Bath Boodband None	t / Help ut	demoroot ÞÐ Logout
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit Service Password E-mail Bath Bath Boodband None	t 2 Help ut	demoraat Þtf Lagaut
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit Service Password E-mail Bath Broadband None	t 2 Help ut	demorroot Þtj Logout
Type Debit © Credit Uvoucher Credit Limit Service Password E-mail Batch Broadband None	t [2] Help ut	demoraat Þ¶ Logaut

- 2. Next to the customer name, click on the icon (the one in the **Accounts** column) to go to the account management for that customer.
- 3. Click on 🖬 Add.

- 4. Fill in the Add Account form:
 - Account ID The ID which will be used to authorize Internet access.
 - **Product** Choose the previously created Internet access product.
 - **Blocked** You may create your account as blocked, although this is rarely done with Internet service accounts.
 - **Opening balance** The initial balance on the account.

Account Info tab

- Type Select Credit, in most cases.
- **Credit limit** For a credit account, specify the credit limit. If you leave this field blank, it means there is no credit limit for this account (but a customer credit limit may still apply).
- Service password The account ID and this password will be used to authenticate Internet users. Make sure you choose a password which is difficult to guess or crack. Use the **Auto** button next to the **Password** field to generate a secure password.
- **Email** Enter the account owner's email address here. If he ever forgets his password for the web self-care pages, he will be able to reset it, and a new password will be sent to this email address. You can also just leave this field empty.
- Batch A batch is a management unit for accounts. If a new batch name is provided in the text field, a new batch will be created when you add the account. Alternatively, an existing batch could be selected from the drop-down list. If you leave this field empty, the created account will not be tied to any specific batch.

Life Cycle tab

- Activation date Account activation date.
- **Expiration date** Account expiration date; since we are setting up a postpaid service, which should function for a long time, leave this field blank.
- **Life Time** Relative expiration date; since we are setting up a postpaid service, which should function for a long time, leave this field blank.

Service Features tab

- Service Type Select Internet Access.
- Limit Bandwidth The most usual option is Product default. In rare cases, you may need to define special bandwidth values for an account which would override those set in the product. In such cases, select Yes to define these values, or select No if you do not want to limit bandwidth for this account.
- Max Upload Rate This field becomes active only if you have chosen Yes in the previous field.
- Max Download Rate Same as for the preceding field.
- **Static IP Enabled** Select **Yes** if you want to assign a static IP to this account (the default setting is **No**).
- Static IP If you have selected Yes for the previous field, type in an IP.
- Static IP Netmask Type in a netmask, or leave the default value 255.255.255.255
- **Max Simultaneous Sessions** By default this field is blank, which is equal to 1 (only one user will be able to log in with this account ID and use the Internet). If the account credentials are somehow hacked, no sessions will be initiated from other locations. Change this value if there is a real need to do so and the customer is aware of the risks.
- 5. After clicking Save&Close, you will see a confirmation screen announcing that a new account has been created.
- 6. Repeat steps 3-5 to create more accounts for the customer. For instance, a company to which you supply broadband services may have several Internet users.

Check Current Volume Discount Statistics for Account

- 1. Go to the **Customers** screen (the one containing a list of customers).
- 2. Next to the customer name, click the icon (the one in the **Accounts** column) to enter account management for this customer.
- 3. Perform an account search and, when the required account is displayed, click on the account ID.
- 4. On the Account Info page, click on the Volume Discounts tab.

			88 🛉 (• •		Q	Acco	unt I	info / R	etai	l Cus	tomer	'Iner	net Acce	ss'				moroot	
٨	🖬 Sa	ave	📄 Save i	k Close	. 8	Close	🔳 xDRs	: 👰 E	-Payments	Log	🛛 Т	erminate						Þ	Logout	目 Log
		Acc	ount ID 98	31245	78		1	2	Product	USD	- Inte	rnet Ac	cess St	a: 💙 📍						
		Bloc	ked 🗌						Balance	0.000	DO USD									
1		Use	Agent						Contact -											
			-																	
		[Life Cycl	e	Subs	criptio	ns	¥olum	e Discounts	;	Not	epad	Servi	ice Features						
1			Account Ir	ifo N	1ainten	ance	User Inte	erface	Subscribe	r Al	iases	Addition	nal Info	Custom Fiel	ds					
	T.	Desti	ination Grou	ip Se	rvice	Peak	Level Thr	eshold	Used	Rem	aining	Current I)iscount	Next Dis	scount L	_evel	Discount Ir	nfo		
1	I	Inter	net Access	Bro	adband	N/A	10 g	igabyte	0 gigabyte	10 gi	gabyte	100% (1	'or free)	100% (for fre	e), Limi	ted Usagi				
																	l . ◆ [●] □			
)10 - 100%; 1012 - 100%;	limited					
1														12unlimited	- blocke	ed				
														Xaa	DSE					

5. View the information in the table:

- **Destination Group** The destination group this discount applies to.
- **Peak Level** The type of peak level this discount applies to (peak, off-peak or 2nd off-peak). In case of **N/A**, no off-peak levels are defined for the destination group in this discount plan, and the same discount applies all the time.
- **Threshold** The threshold value of the currently applied discount level.
- **Used** The current volume counter (total amount of data transfer or money spent).
- **Remaining** The total amount of data transfer or money remaining at this discount level; after it is used up, the next discount level will be applied.
- **Current Discount** The currently applied discount percentage.
- Next Discount Level The discount percentage which will be applied after the threshold is crossed.
- **Discount Info** Click on the icon to view comprehensive information about all applicable discounts levels.

Click 🖬 Close.

Verify Broadband Event History for Account

You can view transaction records (xDRs) for your account subscribers on their respective xDR History pages. To check how much time they have spent on the Internet or how much data they have uploaded/downloaded, go to their Service Usage Details pages. Account subscribers can do the same by visiting their self-care interfaces.

Viewing xDR History

To view the xDR of an account, go to Customers, select the Customer owning the accounts, and click on the Accounts icon; or, alternatively, select **Account Info** in the Help Desk section of Admin-Index page.

₼			88	* 80	₽	~	Q			Account	: Info					demo		
•	۲	Close														▶Ø Lo	gout	
		Accour	it ID		<u>Cu</u>	stome	<u>. r</u>		Bate	<u>h</u>	Ct	rl#	SIP Status				<u>Advan</u>	ced
													ANY	Show Ac	coun	ts	sean	<u>ch</u>
																_		
		xDRs	Ac	count ID	Idle	, days	Currency	y Bal	ance	Credit Limi	Туре		Product	Batch	UM	Status	SIP	
		\square	<u>918</u>	111			USD	10.	00000		Debit	Internet /	Access Pro	Broadband				
		Q	<u>918.</u>	113			USD	10.	00000		Debit	Internet /	Access Premium	<u>Broadband</u>				
		\square	983	124578			USD	0.	00000		Credit	Internet /	Access Start	<u>Broadband</u>				



You can also go to the account self-care page (accessible via the **Accounts** menu item in the **Home** popup menu).

Login with the account's web access login and password. After that you will be able to see the account's dashboard interface with functional dropdown menus upper left. On the **Statistics** menu, click **xDR Browser**.

ຝ		Αςςοι	ınt Login			? Help
•	📧 Password Recovery					
		Login 9. Password •	18113			
			Ý			
۵	II \$ ~	Account s	elf-care	⊕ E	918113	
•	<u>xDR Browser</u>					📲 Logout
		Account ID	Balance	Status		
		918113	10.00000 USD			
	V					

6 🗉 💲 🛩	Yc	our xDR Histor	у 🕓 Е	urope/Prague	918113	? Help
🕨 🛞 Close 🔳	Download 🔳 Sei	vices Usage Details			📲 Logout	
	From Date	2010-02-01	YYY-MM-DD 13:38:27 HH YYY-MM-DD HH ▼	124:MI:S5 [*] 124:MI:S5 [*]		
₲ ⅲ \$ ~		Your xDR Histor	I	() Europ	pe/Prague 918113	? Help
🕨 🛞 Close 🕱 Download	🔳 xDRs 🔳 Services	Usage Details			M) Logou	:
	Account 9 From 2 To 2 Charged by 1 Type E Total Transactions 0 Show Totals By Service	18113 010-02-01 15:26:32 010-02-02 15:26:35 nternet Access Premium' produ vebit 1 15	Credits/Refunds Payments Subscriptions Charged tt Services Charged Total	0.00000 USD 0.00000 USD 0.00000 USD 0.00000 USD 0.00000 USD		

Choose the date range for which you want to see a list of internet accesses, and click **Show xDRs.** In the results table you will see the charges and other fees, such as maintenance fees or refunds (if any). The report can be also downloaded by clicking the **Download** icon.

Viewing Service Usage

While on the xDR History page, click the **Services Usage Details** button. On the next page, select the service type and then click on the date for which you want to view the service usage:

ለ 🗉 🛎 🗠	Service Usage Deta	ils For Account '91	8113'		
Sclose					M Logou
	1	<u> </u>			
Any service		A Ta:	st 12 months 🚩 🖓		
Broadband	2009 2010				
Drouabana					
	Mar 2009	Apr 2009	May 2009	Jun 2009	
	# Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr S	a Su
	9 1	14 1 2 3 4 5	18 1 2 3	23 1 2 3 4 5	6 7
	10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	15 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	19 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	24 8 9 10 11 12 1	3 14
	11 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	16 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	25 15 16 17 18 19 2	0 21
	12 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	17 20 21 22 23 24 25 26	21 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	26 22 23 24 25 26 2	7 28
	13 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	18 27 28 29 30	22 25 26 27 28 29 30 31	27 29 30	
	14 30 31				
	Jul 2009	Aug 2009	Sep 2009	Oct 2009	
	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr S	a Su
	27 1 2 3 4 5	31 1 2	36 1 2 3 4 5 6	40 1 2	3 4
	28 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	32 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	37 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	41 5 6 7 8 9 1	0 11
	29 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	33 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	38 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	42 12 13 14 15 16 1	7 18
	30 20 21 22 23 24 25 26	34 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	39 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	43 19 20 21 22 23 2	4 25
	31 27 28 29 30 31	35 24 25 26 27 28 29 30	40 28 29 30	44 26 27 28 29 30 3	1
		36 31			
	Nov 2009	Dec 2009	Jan 2010	Feb 2010	
	# Ko Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>Sa Su</mark>	# Mo Tu We Th Fr <mark>S</mark>	a Su
	44 1	49 1 2 3 4 5 6	53 1 2 3	<u>5</u> 1 <u>2</u> 3 4 5	6 7
	45 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	50 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	1 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	6 8 9 10 11 12 1	3 14
	46 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	51 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	2 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	7 15 16 17 18 19 2	0 21
	47 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	52 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	3 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	8 22 23 24 25 26 2	7 28
	48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	53 28 29 30 31	4 25 26 27 28 29 30 31		
	49 30				

On the next screen you can view the account's hourly statistics for the chosen service type:

Porta <mark> S</mark>witch

- 🖭 😫	1 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	Services L	Jsage Details For	'Account '⊆)18112' (hourly)	Europe/Prague	
)Close	🗾 Download						🕅 Logout
		From To	2009-08-04 00:00:00 2009-08-04 23:59:59	Download Upload Total	526580624 bytes 523932086 bytes 1050512710 bytes		
Broad	Iband Time		Dowload, bytes		Upload, bytes	🗢 Total,	bytes
Broad	Iband Time 16:00:00		Dowload, bytes 176	¢ 6132578	Upload, bytes 173658930	⊖ Total,	bytes 349791508
Broad 2009-08-04 2009-08-04	Time 16:00:00 17:00:00		Dowload, bytes 176 149	\$ 3132578 3826540	Upload, bytes 173658930 149753956	¢ Total,	bytes 349791508 299580496
Broad 2009-08-04 2009-08-04 2009-08-04	Time 16:00:00 17:00:00 18:00:00		Dowload, bytes 176 145 163	\$ 3132578 3826540 3391574	Upload, bytes 173658930 149753956 163308842	¢ Total,	bytes 349791508 299580496 326700416
Broad 2009-08-04 2009-08-04 2009-08-04 2009-08-04	Time Time 16:00:00 17:00:00 18:00:00 19:00:00		Dowload, bytes 176 149 163 33	÷ 5132578 9826540 3391574 7229932	Upload, bytes 173658930 149753956 163308842 37210358	≎ Total,	bytes 349791508 299580496 326700416 74440290